
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

AUGUST 8, 2022

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 8th of August, 2022 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the City
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota, Texas
77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

To watch the City Council meeting live please visit the City of Navasota's Youtube
here: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCltnx7BQt0TCIYJRiZ14g5w 
 
1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City
Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Credentialed Manager designation from ICMA [Bert Miller, Mayor];

(b) Budget Update [Jason Weeks, City Manager];

(c) Board and Commission update [City Council]; and

(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community
interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence;
information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public
officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events
organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or
community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled
to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has
arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

5. Consideration and possible action on annual activity report from Grimes Health
Resource Center for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and budget request for FY 2021-2022.
[Jason Weeks, City Manager]

6. Consideration and possible action on proposal to adopt tax rate for 2022 and
announce time, date, and place of public hearings and the meetings to vote on the
tax rate. [Lance Hall, Finance Director]

7. Consideration and possible action on appointment to library advisory board.
[Tiffany Byers, Library Director]



8. Consideration and possible action on entering into a Master Service Interlocal
Agreement with Brazos Valley Council of Governments (BVCOG) for fiber internet
services. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]

9. Consideration and possible action on approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with
RAM NAVASOTA, LLC regarding the development of a Jack in the Box Restaurant,
widening of County Road 425 and other commercial improvements to the property
located near the corner of County Road 425 (also known as Durden Street) and
State Highway 105 East, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. [Lupe Diosdado,
Development Services Director]

10. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda. [City Council]

Consent Items are:

A. Consider approval on the minutes for the month of July 2022;

B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of July 2022; and

C. Consider approval of the second reading of Ordinance No. 1000-22, approving a
voluntary annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre tract
of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, and a second voluntary annexation
request submitted by J&H Development, for a 1.567-acre tract of land in the
Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. [Mayor Bert Miller]

11. Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted
by Section 551.071, Texas Government Code - Consultation with Attorney –
Consultation with Legal Counsel regarding legal issues concerning the contract
with Green Dream International, LLC for the Downtown Revitalization Program –
W. Washington Avenue - 8th Street to 10th Street, and associated matters.

12. Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an Executive Session in
accordance with Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, deliberation regarding
real property and discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-
owned property.

13. Reconvene in open session.

14. Consideration and possible action on the contract with Green Dream International,
LLC for the Downtown Revitalization Program - W. Washington Avenue - 8th Street
to 10th Street, including but not limited to approval of Change Order No. 1 to said
contract, and associated matters. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]

15. Consideration and possible action on bid award for RFP Number 202201 –
Redevelopment of Former City Warehouse. [Rayna Teicheira, Economic
Development Director]

16. Adjourn.



DATED THIS THE 5TH OF AUGUST, 2022

/JW/

BY: JASON WEEKS, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of
meeting of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and
correct copy of said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said
notice in the glass bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the
Municipal Building as well as in the bulletin board on the north side of the
Municipal Building of the City of Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and
readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said notice was
posted on the 5th of August, 2022 at 02:41 PM and will remain posted
continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of said
meeting. Agendas may be viewed at www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any
time deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.089.

DATED THIS THE 5TH OF AUGUST, 2022

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits:  
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Staff Report:  
 
(a) Credentialed Manager designation from ICMA; 
 
(b) Budget Update;  
 
(b) Board and Commission Update; and 
 
(c) Reports from staff and City Council 
 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
A. The Mayor will provide a presentation to the City Manager on him earning his 

“Credentialed Manager” certification through the International City Managers 
Association (ICMA). 
 

B. The City Manager will provide a brief update on the fiscal year 2022-2023 
Proposed Budget. 

 
C. City Council will provide updates to the public and councilmembers pertaining 

to any attended Board & Commission meetings they attended over the past 
two-weeks. 

 
D. The Mayor and City Council along with the City Manager will provide reports 

regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, 
congratulations or condolences; information regarding holiday schedules; 
honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other 
citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City 
of Navasota; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



organized or sponsored by non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by 
City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to 
the public health and safety of people in the City of Navasota that has arisen 
after the posting of the agenda. 

 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
None 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

  
 
    
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



 
 

AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 
 

AUGUST 8, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 07/25/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Credentialed Manager designation from ICMA; (b) Budget update; (c) Board  
    and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. Budget request – Grimes Resource Center 
6. Adopt tax rate for 2022 
7. Appointment to the Library board 
8. Master Service Interlocal Agreement with BVCOG for fiber internet 
9. 380 agreement - RAM 
10.Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of July, 2022; (b) Expenditures for the  
    month of July 2022; and (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 1000-22 – volunteer annexation 
11.Executive Session: Section 551.071 TGC - Contract with Green Dream 
12.Executive Session: Sale of warehouse 
13.Reconvene in open session 
14.Change Order – Green Dream 
15.Bid award – Former City Warehouse 
16.Adjourn 

 

AUGUST 15, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 08/08/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Budget workshop 
5. Adjourn 

 

AUGUST 22, 2022 – Workshop 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Discuss agenda process/packets 
4. Adjourn 

 

AUGUST 22, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 08/08/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Introduction of new employees; (b) Years of Service Recognition; (c) Board  
    and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____ - Vicious Dogs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 08/29/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____ - approving budget for FY 2022-2023 
6. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____ - approving tax rate for FY 2022-2023 
7. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _____ - Fine and fee schedule 
8. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of August 2022; (b) Expenditures for the month 
of August 2022; and (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. ____, Vicious dogs 
9. Adjourn 

 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 – DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 09/12/2022 

1. Called to order 
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Remarks of visitors 
4. Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - approving budget for FY 2022-2023 
6. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - approving tax rate for FY 2022-2023 
7. 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - Fine and fee schedule 
8. Adjourn 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



  

 

 

 
 

Report 

 

and 

 

Strategic Plan 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 

 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT AND STRATEGIC PLAN 

COUNCIL/STAFF  

RETREAT 

 

CITY OF NAVASOTA 
  

February 12, 2021 

 

Introduction 
 

On February 12, 2021, the Mayor, City Council and staff of the City of Navasota met for 

a retreat planning session. The purpose of this meeting was twofold. 

 

• Confirm and expand the governance philosophy for the City Council. Included in 

that is identifying key elements of the Council’s vision for Navasota. 

• Prepare a strategic plan for the city. 

 

The Mayor, Council and staff freely worked together, and their work was exemplary in 

all respects. Ron Cox facilitated the process. 

 

Governance 

 
In their February 12, 2021 session the Council confirmed the governance policy they 

established in 2017 and expanded on it by further defining their governance philosophy. 

The Council participated in discussions about their role, together and their leadership 

responsibilities. The elements of a strong governance model are having and following 

clear vision and mission, establishing leadership and communications philosophies, and 

identifying the expectations of each other as City Council members, and the City staff, 

and of identifying and recognizing the expectations staff has of the City Council.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

3 

The key elements of the Governance Philosophy are leadership, communication and 

understanding and defining expectations. These define how the team will function 

together. Visioning and planning are the key elements that define what the strategies and 

goals are for the City of Navasota and what they will be to ensure the vision is ultimately 

attained. 

 

Governance Model 
 

The governance model first begins with leadership. Each member of the Council asked to 

provide input into how they will lead, communicate and a defining of expectations for 

themselves and staff. 

 

The facilitator began the process by asking each of the members why they ran and serve 

on the City Council. They responded as follows: 

 

The Mayor and Council reviewed and confirmed their Governance Policy and Rules of 

Engagement established in 2017. These are as follows. 

 

Mayor and Council members ran for the office and serve … 

 

• Had already serviced on other boards and wanted to be active in the growth to 

come. 

• To lead city in the right direction. 

• Saw growth coming and saw weaknesses in various ordinances that needed 

strengthening – now growth is really here. 

• To bring a different insight as a native of Navasota. 

• To encourage business growth and economic development. 

• Am able to serve. 

• Originally to change the direction of the city (and have done that). 

• Exciting to be a part of big decisions for the community. 

 

The facilitator then asked the members to describe the attributes they have that will 

contribute to the work of the Council. 

 

Mayor and Council have the following attributes … 

 

• Able to think outside the box on issues. 

• Business experience in the private sector. 

• Provides a technical background. 

• Brings a different point of view, being from a different generation than others on 

the Council. 

• Historical memory as a native of Navasota. 

• Love the community. 

• Committed to the community. 

• Service to the community. 

• Have the time to serve. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

4 

• Have a special needs child bringing different perspective to decision making. 

• Raised seven children and now grandchildren all in Navasota community and 

schools. 

• Different stages of our lives, bring different viewpoints. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will lead by … 

 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota will communicate … 

 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to each other and to citizens. 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of each other… 

 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in the gaps of knowledge for 

them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

5 

 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota expect the following of the staff … 

 

• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – understanding and 

responding to individual council members in the way that communicates best to 

them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 

 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

The staff expects the following of the Mayor and Council of the City of Navasota (as 

defined by the City Council) … 

 

• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 

Vision and Mission 

 
On February 6, the Council and senior staff discussed the elements vision they have for 

Navasota. Currently, there are is Vision Statement and Mission Statement for the City. 

After a review, the Mayor and Council identified and confirmed the key elements of the 

vision and mission for the City.  

 

Vision Statement 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, close-kinit community filled with 

historic charm and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

6 

 

Vision Elements 

 

These elements were discussed and are presented in no particular order of priority. It was 

noted that in reviewing the Vision Statement from the Comprehensive Plan, these key 

vision elements are consistent with and embodied in the Vision Statement. 

 

• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

• Clean. 

• Safe. 

• Friendly and inviting. 

• Historic. 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

• Successful. 

• Sustainable. 

• Full of opportunity. 

• Innovative. 

• Charming. 

 

Mission Statement 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains our heritage, culture and 

uniqueness while maximizing our economic and social development. 

 

Mission Elements 

 

These key mission elements are presented in no particular order of priority. 

 

• Committed. 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

• Dedication and desire. 

• Proper planning. 

• To communicate the Vision. 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

• Flexible. 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

Strategic Planning 

 
The facilitator led the participants in a SWOT analysis, identifying and discussing the 

strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats for the City of Navasota, both 

organizationally and in the community. The weaknesses then were divided into common 

themes – Areas of Emphasis or Vision Elements. Within each of the Areas of Emphasis, 

opportunities – strategies and goals – were identified to overcome the weaknesses. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

7 

Finally, threats were identified that if not anticipated may get in the way of 

accomplishing the strategies and goals. 

 

The participants were divided into three groups. Each group focused on strengths and 

weaknesses as follows. 

 

Strengths 

 

Group 1 

• Qualified personnel. 

• Close knit team/community. 

• Has a can-do attitude. 

• Pride in community and city organization. 

• Friendly. 

• Great leadership – Council, City Manager and staff. 

• Caring. 

• Small town charm. 

• Service oriented. 

• Open minded and welcoming. 

• Knowledgeable about work, etc. 

• Dedication. 

• Good foundation upon which to build. 

• Resilient. 

• Organization is accountable to the community. 

• Have integrity and honesty. 

• Everyone is team player. 

• Willing to admit to issues and problems. 

• Self-aware. 

• Transparent. 

• Have community support. 

• Have a multi-faceted community makeup. 

• Visionaries. 

• Excellent location. 

• Diversity in the community. 

 

Group 2 

• Great staff. 

• Buy-in from the community. 

• A community feeling. 

• Progressive. 

• Safe. 

• Leadership. 

• Proactive Council. 

• Beginning infrastructure design improvements. 

• City services. 

• Facilities. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

8 

• Partnerships. 

• Potential for growth. 

• Location. 

• History. 

• Industry. 

 

 

Group 3 

• Experience of Council and staff. 

• New councilmembers bringing energy and new ideas. 

• Leadership. 

• Collaboration. 

• Creativity. 

• Openness/inviting community. 

• Honesty/trust. 

• Stability. 

• Teamwork. 

• Loyalty and pride. 

• Service minded. 

• Relationships/friendly/user friendly. 

• Fun. 

• Commitment and dedication. 

 

 

Weaknesses 

 

Group 1 

• Lack of social and health services. 

• Minimal retail services. 

• Lack of transportation services. 

• Lack of after 5 p.m. activities. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Difficulty in communication from the city to the citizens. 

• Lack of finances for unfunded mandates. 

• Outside negative perception of the community. 

• Finding and retaining good staff. 

• Lack of seasoned/experienced staff at all levels. 

• Lack of citizen input/involvement. 

• Uninformed criticism from citizens. 

• Limited connectivity to high quality internet. 

• Technologically inhibited/fear of technology 

 

Group 2 

• Fear of change. 

• More work than staff can accomplish. 

• Lack of job career diversity. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

9 

• Perception of the school district. 

• Lack of rental/multifamily in the city. 

• Retail leakage. 

• Lack of amenities for social and family time. 

• Train traffic. 

• Animal control/fire department facilities need replacing. 

• Lack of internet connectivity. 

 

Group 3 

• Communication/understanding of the message. 

• People making assumptions without all the information. 

• Aging infrastructure. 

• Sometimes resistant to change. 

• Dislike of others. 

• Financial resources are limited. 

• Retention of employees. 

• Outside perception of Navasota. 

• People have long memories. 

• Lack of participation by the citizens. 

• Being required to respond to circumstances beyond our control. 

• Limited technology in the community in the city. 

 

Areas of Emphasis 

 

Reviewing the weaknesses presented resulted in the identification of five areas of 

emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

• Economic Development 

• Image/Communication 

• Infrastructure 

 

Weaknesses Rearranged 

 

The weaknesses identified above, were then summarized and arranged to be within one of 

the areas of emphasis. 

 

• Governance 

o Resistance to change. 

o Employee retention. 

o Responding to circumstances beyond city’s control. 

o Unfunded mandates. 

o Lack of participation. 

 

• Economic Development 

o Diversity in career jobs. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

10 

o Sufficient revenue for infrastructure redevelopment. 

o Retail leakage 

o Lack of social and family recreation. 

o Need for diversity in housing. 

o Social and health services. 

 

• Image/Communication 

o Negative perception of school district. 

o Negative perception of city. 

o Inability to provide information to all ages 

▪ Internally and externally. 

▪ Lack of understanding. 

▪ Criticism from the uninformed. 

▪ From city to citizens 

 

• Infrastructure 

o Train traffic. 

o Again infrastructure 

o Transportation. 

o Facilities. 

o Poor quality of internet and technology, city and citywide. 

 

 

Opportunities – Strategies and Goals 

 

The groups then brainstormed to identify opportunities to overcome the weaknesses. 

These opportunities are the basis for the strategies and goals prepared below. 

 

Governance 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in Navasota 

government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment between Council and all 

committees. 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits that incentivize 

employment and retention. 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

11 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to economic 

development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 

(Note: there were some communications initiatives in Governance. These have been 

moved to Image/Communication to avoid repetition.) 

 

Economic Development 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other institutions to 

enhance the economic development process. 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

o Pursue grants from EDA. 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota. 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the state. 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical providers) 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment. 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

(Note: there were some infrastructure initiatives in Economic Development. These have 

been moved to Infrastructure to avoid repetition.) 

 

Image/Communication 

• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and virtual. 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

• Improve communication in general with the public. (Note: moved from 

Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

Infrastructure 

• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over the 

railroad tracks. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

12 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad. 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed city 

infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s internet 

system. 

o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 

Threats 

 

Finally, Council and staff identified threats to accomplishing the goals and strategies that 

have been identified. 

 

• Fear – lack of understanding of the issues and the unknown. 

• Money. 

• Economic downturn. 

• Federal and state unfunded mandates and restrictions to local government. 

• Social media. 

• Uncommitted leadership. 

• Politization of local government. 

• Suffering the unintended consequences of outside mandates. 

• Encroaching crime. 

• Another pandemic – COVID. 

• Adverse weather. 

• No response to the failing infrastructure. 

• The “cancel culture” – just turning off or destroying what one disagrees with – 

refusal to dialogue. 

• Not adapting to the change in the ideology of the culture. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

13 

City Staff Implementation Sessions 

 
April 5 and 14, 2021 

 

On April 5, 2021 the facilitator met with the City Manager and staff to review the 

outcomes of the planning session and to determine next steps for the development of the 

implementation plan. 

 

Implementation Plan Process. The staff reviewed a template to be used to develop the 

implementation portion of the planning process. During the discussions, a staff member 

was assigned as the team facilitator for the development of the implementation plan for 

each areas of emphasis. Further they began the process of developing action steps, with 

proposed timelines, and budget implications (if they were known at the time).  

 

On April 14, 2021 staff again met with the facilitator to review and complete a draft 

implementation plan. The implementation plan is included in this document.  

 

 

 

Reporting 
 

Finally, staff established reporting protocols. These protocols serve the purpose of 

keeping the staff on schedule with the implementation of strategies, keeping the City 

Manager informed, and providing regular reports to the Mayor and City Council on the 

status of the implementation of the adopted strategies. This provides for long term 

accountability toward the implementation of the Strategic Plan. 

 

Reporting Protocols  
 

• Council 

o Receives updates at least monthly from staff at Council meetings 

regarding various projects related to the strategic plan. 

o Receives formal status reports, including a semi-annual and annual report 

from staff to the City Council. 

• City Manager 

o City Manager receives regular – both formal and informal - updates from 

staff at regular staff meetings on progress of assignments. 

 

City Council Approval 

April 26, 2021 
 

On TBD, 2021, the City Council reviewed their work as well as the work of the staff 

since the planning session in January. After a thorough discussion the Report was 

approved as amended unanimously.  

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

14 

Conclusion 
 

The Mayor, Council and staff of the City of Navasota worked through a governance and 

planning process that allowed the Council to create a governance model and identify and 

expand strategies for moving the city forward. The process brought the staff leadership 

and Council closer together as a team and developed an implementation process to ensure 

the strategies are addressed and accomplished over time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

15 

 
 

 

 

Strategic Plan 

2021 
 

 

 

 

Council/Staff Planning Retreat  

February 12, 2021 

 

 

Adopted 

April 26, 2021 

 
 

Prepared and Facilitated 

By 

Ron Cox Consulting 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

16 

Vision Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Navasota 2027: What America wants to Be: 

A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service oriented, 

close-kinit community filled with historic charm 

and promise for people and business. 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

17 

Key Vision Elements 

2021 

 

 
• Navasota is a role model for other cities. 

 

• Clean. 

 

• Safe. 

 

• Friendly and inviting. 

 

• Historic. 

 

• Beautiful and manicured. 

 

• Successful. 

 

• Sustainable. 

 

• Full of opportunity. 

 

• Innovative. 

 

• Charming. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

18 

Mission Statement 
(Adopted 2017) 

 

 

 

To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that 

maintains our heritage, culture and uniqueness 

while maximizing our economic and social 

development. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

19 

 

Mission Elements 
 

 

 

 

• Committed. 

 

• Stay focused on the mission. 

 

• Dedication and desire. 

 

• Proper planning. 

 

• To communicate the Vision. 

 

• Provide great/exceptional customer service. 

 

• Clear, consistent, defined responsibilities. 

 

• Flexible. 

 

• Understanding of your role and responsibilities. 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

20 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Leadership Philosophy 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will lead by… 

• Providing the facts. 

• Seeking and gaining understanding of the problems. 

• Listening, asking, seeking information and deciding. 

• Coming together for the greater good – compromising 

and building consensus. 

• Toward a common goal – betterment of 

Navasota. 

• Finding a win/win for all. 

• Building consensus. 

• Picking your wins carefully. 

• Not being afraid to admit you are wrong and changing 

your mind. 

• Being patient. 

• Being humble – not prideful or egotistical. 

• Being passionate about our city, but not dictatorial. 

• Being brave for our city. 

• Showing respect and being respectful of others. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

21 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council 

Communication Philosophy 

The City Council of the City of Navasota will 

communicate by… 

• Effectively with citizens, each other and staff… 

• Concisely. 

• Clearly. 

• Completely. 

• Seek and allow responses. 

• Seek to understand. 

• Take the time to explain the issue and resolution to 

each other and to citizens. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

22 

  

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

 

Council expects the following of each other… 

• Remember we all work for the citizens – Council and 

staff alike. 

• Set the table for the citizens on agenda items – fill in 

the gaps of knowledge for them. 

• Follow the process. 

• Be willing to slow the process down. 

• Respect each other and their opinions. 

• Be honest. 

• Be consistent. 

• Do your homework. 

• Be vulnerable – admit you do not know everything.  

• Be willing to learn. 

• Don’t take the issue personally 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

23 

City of Navasota 

City Council and Staff 

Expectations 

Council expects the following of staff… 
• Set the table to explain agenda items for Council and citizens. 

• Be clear and timely in the information flow to Council – 

understanding and responding to individual council members in the 

way that communicates best to them. 

• Don’t take it personally. 

• Provide the full picture – the good, the bad, and the ugly. 

• Have patience. 

• Know your lane and stay in it. 

• Understand the chain-of-command. 
 

(It was noted that the City Council and staff should all have and respond to the same 

expectations.) 

 

Staff expects Council to (as defined by Council 

members themselves) … 
• Don’t play the “gotcha” game with staff. 

• Have an understanding of staff, their role. 

• Ask questions and don’t assume. 

• Have patience. 

• Be fair. 

• Listen to staff. 

• Be respectful to staff. 

• Seek information on what council can do to help the staff succeed. 

• Seriously consider their recommendations. 

• Attempt to solve the problems that are presented. 

• Give them clear direction. 

• Remember that staff is working for the citizens, as well as the 

Council. 

• Don’t put undue pressure on staff. 

• Follow the chain-of-command. 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

24 

City of Navasota  

 

Strategic 

 

Areas of Emphasis 
 

 

• Governance 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established 

rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and 

predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

• Economic Development 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong 

and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and 

property tax base while also contributing to a high quality of 

life. 

 

• Image/Communication 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work 

to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and 

improve the image of the community. 

 

• Infrastructure 
o Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the 

citizens and businesses, and staff. 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

25 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of 

governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable 

deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Initiatives: 

 

• Establish a program to encourage more participation in 

Navasota government. 

o Establish and implement leadership academies. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

▪ Establish a citizens’ fire academy. 

o Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

 

• Establish an employee retention strategy. 

o Identify and promote the work culture, benefits of the 

city. 

o Promote the community and organizational culture. 

o Explore housing incentives to live and work in 

Navasota and attract new employees. 

o Cast a wider net for employees. 

o Explore opportunities for providing employee benefits 

that incentivize employment and retention. 

 

• Explore opportunity for a full-time grant writer. 

 

• Provide a clear sense of direction to all boards related to 

economic development. 

o Establish an Economic Development Strategy with the NEDC 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

26 

Area of Emphasis 

 

Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse 

economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while 

also contributing to a high quality of life. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
 

• Establish a partnership with NISD, Blinn, TAMU and other 

institutions to enhance the economic development process. 

 

• Seek out grant opportunities. 

 

o Grants from EDA. 

 

• Enhance the marketing of Navasota 

o Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

o Marketing of lower utility costs compared to other areas. 

o Marketing location and proximity to major metro areas in the 

state. 

 

• Seek partners to improve local health and social service providers. 

o Explore health authority with county. 

o Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s healthcare system. 

o Recruit health provider specialists (optometrists and medical 

providers) 

 

• Enhance strategic retail recruitment 

o Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

o Attend recruitment conferences (industry, retail, restaurants, 

etc.) 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

27 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Image/Communications 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide 

accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of 

the community. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Improve the perception and image of Navasota. 

o Establish a positive campaign to promote Navasota. 

▪ Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

o Identify target audiences. 

▪ Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

▪ Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

▪ Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

 

• Establish a program to educate ISD students about local 

government. 

o Sponsor a job shadowing program for students in the city. 

 

• Improve communication in general with the public (Note: moved 

from Governance) 

o Be deliberate about creating buy-in from citizens.  

▪ Inform, educate and cast the vision 

o Prepare and implement a communication protocol. 

 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

28 

 

Area of Emphasis 
 

Infrastructure 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent 

infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and 

businesses, and staff. 

 

 

Initiatives 

 
• Prepare a plan for construction of an elevated grade crossing over 

the railroad tracks. 

o Identify location and right of way needs for the crossing. 

o Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

o Identify land for a substation for fire and animal control. 

o Establish contact and conversation with the railroad 

 

• Prepare a capital improvements plan and program for needed 

city infrastructure. 

o Improve aging infrastructure. 

o Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

o Expand parks, trails and bike paths. 

o Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. 

 

• Create additional opportunity for social and family amenities. 

o Create additional sports facilities. 

o Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Identify and plan for needed improvements to the community’s 

internet system. 
o Identify and review the existing systems available to the City 

▪ BVCOG Fiber Loop 

▪ Midsouth Synergies 

▪ Other 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

29 

 
 

 
 

 



 

Navasota Report and Action Plan 2021  

Feb. 5&6, 2021 Strategic Planning Process  

1 

 

 
 

 

 



Vision Element #1 

Governance 

 
Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota follows established rules of governance that promote civil discourse, consistent and predictable deliberation and exemplary action. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

1.1 Establish a 

program to 

encourage 

more 

participation in 

Navasota 

government. 

1.1.1 Establish and implement leadership 

academies. 

 

• Re-implement a citizens’ academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ police academy. 

• Establish a citizens’ fire academy 

 

 X 

X 

X 

  

Brad 

Stafford 

 

 

 

 

 

• Hold town hall meetings with citizens in 

neighborhoods and restaurants to discuss City 

operations and governance. 

• Present organizational environment to the community 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

• Grilling Stafford 

• Monday of City Council meetings: partner with Willy 

98.7 and Navasota Examiner to go over upcoming City 

Council Agenda. (also Facebook Live) 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

  

 

1.1.2 Provide a clear sense of director to 

all boards 
• Organize a volunteer luncheon for Boards & 

Commissions volunteers 

• Joint meeting with all boards/commissions for 

direction/legal training and Roberts rules. 

• Bring strategic planning and comprehensive planning 

documents to NEDC for approval 

• Recruit members who align with City Council 

• Improve communication and strategic alignment 

between Council and all committees. 

• Inform all communication & comp plan updates to all 

boards 

• Staff to facilitate strategic plan for economic 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

  



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

development corporation 

 

 

 

X 

  1.1.3 Establish a volunteer appreciation 

program   
• Organize a short ceremony for volunteers around the 

city (ex: Blue Santa, Trash Off) 

•  

 

X   Rayna  

1.2 Explore 

opportunity for 

a full-time 

grant writer. 

 

1.2.1 Continued professional development   

• Explore grant writing training opportunities 

• Continue partnership with BVCOG 

• Research other cities how grants are handled 

 

  

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

Willenbrink  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 2 



Economic Development 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will promote a strong and diverse economy that strengthens the local sales tax and property tax base while also contributing to a high 

quality of life. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

2.1 Establish a 

partnership 

with NISD, 

Blinn, TAMU 

and other 

institutions to 

enhance the 

economic 

development 

process. 

 

2.1.1 Pursue grants from EDA. 

 
• Continue partnership with BVCOG for information 

on EDA grants 

• Continue relationship with Grantworks 

• Continue TEDC membership for resources on EDA 

grants 

• Explore new partnerships 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

  

 

Rayna 

2.1.2 Develop workforce programs • Explore partnerships with NISD 

• Continue partnership Chamber & CETA 

• Explore opportunities with the SBDC 

• Continue partnership with Bush School/TAMU 

• Reach out to BVCOG for funding opportunities 

• Research Texas Workforce Commission 

opportunities 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

2.2 Enhance the 

marketing of 

Navasota. 

 

2.2.1 Marketing to fulfill housing needs. 

 
• Show housing growth to demonstrate demand. 

• Establish a permit/fee waiver program 

• Utilize NEDC website to highlight utility costs and 

location 

• Navasota Economic Development corporation 

Featured on the Navasota.gov home page 

  

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

X 

  

 

Madison 2.2.2 Marketing of lower utility costs 

compared to other areas. 

 

2.2.3 Marketing location and proximity to 

major metro areas in the state. 

 

2.3 Seek partners 

to improve 

local health 

and social 

2.3.1 Explore health authority with county. 

 
• Improve relationship with county and cities within 

the county 

• Continue to meet with the county this past year about 

this partnership but their level of interest currently 

 

 

X 

 

 X  

 

Rayna 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

service 

providers. 

 

not very high.  

• Continue to explore other avenues to recruit and 

establish a local public health authority and possibly 

a heath inspections office. 

• Possible partnering with other cities in the county 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

2.3.2 Establish Health Inspector  • Establish Policy  

• Appoint and train inspector 

  X 

X 

2.3.3 Explore partnership with St. Joseph’s 

healthcare system. 

 

• Add health care recruitment to the regional (retail) 

recruitment project 

  X 

2.3.4 Recruit health provider specialists 

(optometrists and medical providers) 

 

2.4 Enhance 

strategic retail 

recruitment. 

 

2.4.1 Continue to partner with Retail Coach. 

 
• Conduct community surveys to see what citizens 

wish lists are 

• Regional retail recruitment project 

 

 

Ongoing 

X   

 

Rayna 2.4.2 Attend recruitment conferences 

(industry, retail, restaurants, etc.) 

 

  2.4.3 Downtown Assessment • Reach out to Texas Downtown Association for a 

downtown assessment 

• Explore marketing strategies 

• Partnership with SBDC 

X 

 

X 

X 

   

 

 

 

Vision Element # 3 



Image/Communication 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will proactively work to provide accurate, timely communications to the citizens and improve the image of the community. 

 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

3.1 Improve the 

perception and 

image of 

Navasota. 

 

3.1.1 Establish a positive campaign to promote 

Navasota. 

 

• Prepare both an in-person and digital message. 

• Positive short videos about ongoing projects 

• Create a new branding campaign 

• Expand partnership with NISD 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

  

 

Madison 

3.1.2 Identify target audiences to effectively 

recruit new citizens while improving 

community pride. 

 

• Attend realtor conferences to tell the Navasota story. 

• Utilize citizens’ academies (see Governance). 

• Explore use of Town Hall meetings – in-person and 

virtual. 

• Utilize all methods of communication with the public; 

i.e. Grilling Stafford, trails town hall meetings, agenda 

briefings with local media, Navigate Navasota app 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

X 

X 

X 

 

3.2 Establish a 

program to 

educate ISD 

students about 

local 

government. 

 

3.2.1 Re-establish an internship/sponsor a job 

shadowing program for students in the 

city. 

 

• Co-op student to assist with administrative services for 

all departments with 15-20 hours beginning with a 

minimum wage of $7.25. 

• Speak with the co-op class  

• Both high school and college  

 X 

 

 

X 

X 

  

 

Peggy  

& Shawn 

3.3 Improve 

communication 

in general with 

the public. 

3.3.1 Be deliberate about creating buy-in from 

citizens. 
• Inform, educate and cast the vision. 

• Advertise City Council meetings in the paper 

($1,872/year), on the radio, yard signs, banners 

 

X 

X 

   

 

Madison 

3.3.2 Prepare and implement a communication 

protocol. 

• Explore new advertising techniques, i.e. Navigate Navasota 

app, CTY advertisement, Facebook events for all meetings 

•  Explore communication methods for Boards & 

Commissions, i.e. post all agendas on Facebook event 

 X 

 

 

X 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• All boards give regular updates at City Council meetings 

 
X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 4 

Infrastructure 
 

Guiding Principle: The City of Navasota will provide excellent infrastructure and facilities that meets the needs of the citizens and businesses, and staff. 



 

Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

4.1 Prepare a 

plan for 

construction 

of an elevated 

grade crossing 

over the 

railroad 

tracks. 

 

4.1.1 Identify location and right of way needs for the 

crossing. 

 

• Thorough fare plan completion 

and implementation 

 

 X   

 

Jose 

& 

Lupe 
4.1.2 Establish costs to city to accommodate the crossing. 

 
• Compile land acquisition costs per thorough 

fare plan design 

• Obtain estimate cost proposals for  

engineering and construction 

 

  X 

 

X 

4.2 

 

Prepare a 

capital 

improvements 

plan and 

program for 

needed city 

infrastructure. 

 

4.2.1 Improve aging infrastructure. 

 

 

Phase one: FY22 

Phase two: FY24 

 

• CIP Bring in a consultant to help formalize the 

plan 

o Update water modeling  

o Consultant to model Gas system and 

Wastewater system 

o Present CIP to Finance Dept. to plan 

for funding options. 

o Streets and Storm water evaluations 

and priorities  

o Replace/repair gas regulator stations 

• Complete phase 1 of CIP 

• Begin phase 2 of CIP 

• Fire hydrant repair/replacement 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

Jeff 

&  

Jose  

4.2.2 Improve aging and inadequate facilities. 

 
• Create a facilities master plan 

o Hire Consultant  

• Replace or improve animal shelter and vehicle 

services 

• Sell existing warehouse and build a new one 

• Replace the current primary fire station and 

EOC at the South LaSalle location.  

• Explore the possibility of a second fire 

station/public safety facility at Hwy 

  X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

105/Fairway Dr. because of the continued 

growth and expansion of the city and the 

delayed responses due to train traffic 

• Valve and other mechanical equipment 

replacement at wastewater plant 

• Look at alternative disinfectant treatment 

methods 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

4.2.4 Identify funding sources – bonds, grants, etc. • We currently are working with 2020 Capital 

Improvement Bond.   

• We are working towards doing a bond every 2 

years for CIP 

• USDA loan 

• Add gas capital improvement fee to monthly 

billing. 

• Funding from American Rescue Plan  

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

  

4.3 Create 

additional 

opportunity 

for social and 

family 

amenities. 

 

4.3.1 Create additional sports facilities. 

 

• Identify most desired facilities 

• Identify possible locations 

• Land acquisition 

• Identify funding mechanism 

• Design facilities  

• Obtain bids/pricing on new facilities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

 

 

Colton 

4.3.3 Make park improvements – trails, bike paths, etc. 

 

• Adjust city ordinance on parkland dedication 

to allow developers to contribute directly to 

ongoing projects 

• Develop community programs that improve 

parks 

• Identify areas of greatest need 

• Obtain bids/pricing on improvements 



Strategic Initiatives   Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Lead 

• Navasota Sidewalk and Trails plan. 

4.4 Identify and 

plan for 

needed 

improvements 

to the 

community’s 

internet 

system. 

 

4.4.1 Identify and review the existing systems available and 

options to the City 

 

• Facilitate BVCOG partnerships with local ISP 

suppliers to improve speeds in underserved 

areas. 

• Encourage/ Incentivize Midsouth Synergy 

expansion into town via City ROW/Easements 

• Research other ISP options available. 

  X 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

Lupe 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vision Element # 5 

Organizational Excellence 
 

Guiding Principle:  *Ron will update 



 

5.1 Establish an 

employee 

retention 

strategy. 

 

5.1.1 Identify and promote the work culture, 

benefits of the city. 

 

• Promote teamwork aspect of our culture, there are no 

islands everyone works together in some form or 

fashion. 

Hiring Process: 

• Streamline our online HR system 

o Job search & application process  

o Dependable Human Resource Information 

System software 

 

• Update both Incode and Internet system  
          

• Use of Social media to find candidates (i.e. Linkedin, 

Indeed) 
 

• Job boards at colleges and career fairs 

• Create a Referral Program with employee incentives  
 

• Create city parameter for job searches  
 

• Continued use of onboard process 

• Create formal policy hiring practices 

 

Offer competitive salary and benefits: 

• Contact other Cities (population of 5-10K) and 

surrounding industries/business (Trinity, etc.) to make 

sure City is within similar pay range  

• Find strong benefit package (medical, dental, vision, 

life)   

Other Incentives: 

• Continue to make employee feel valued and 

appreciated 
▪  

Ongoing 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Peggy 

Johnson 

 

Strategic Initiatives  Goals Action Steps FY22 FY23 FY24 Leader 



• Continue to offer career advancement opportunity 

(invest in employee-greater future with City) 

• Pay for course for training (all departments) 
 

• College tuition reimbursement 
 

• Safety bonuses (no accidents, etc.) Safety pins 

(providing a day off), Bonus day- annually 
 

• Hazardous duty pays (ex: working big storms, etc.) 
▪  

• Team outings/lunches (Spring/Fall) and Christmas 

Party- employee does not have to organize or work the 

event 

• Monetary (bonuses and raises) 

• Continue to Recognize: years of service with Plaque 

and bag of goodies.  At the end of the year employee 

shall receive gift card (money, dinner, coffee, spa) (5 

year increments) 
o  

• Hand written note (“thank you” “job well done”, etc.) 
o  

• Brag board: located front lobby with employee picture 

and award (ex: Rookie of the year, Employee of the 

month, etc.) 

• Discount on rental facilities for city employees  

• City owned workout facility to promote health  

• Utility incentives to promote employees to live in 

Navasota  

• Reconsider 20-year retirement package/insurance to 

the age of social security  

• Evaluate additional employees to complete project 

assignments  

• Evaluate incentives for succession planning in career 

development  

 
 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

 

 

X 

 

 

 



 

5.1.2 Promote the community and 

organizational environment  

 

• Video montage of all city events and city participation 

of employees 

• Clear and transparent communication 

• Create Cultural Diversity Awareness by reaching out 

to different segments of the City  

• Career Fair days 

Ongoing 

 

X 

X 

 

X 

 

  

5.1.3 Explore housing incentives to live and 

work in Navasota and attract new 

employees. 

 

• Partner with local realtors or Chamber to put together 

informational housing options package 
▪  

• Pay a portion of moving expenses into Navasota within 

the city limits 

 

X 

 

 

X 

  

  



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits: 2022 Budget Letter, 3rd Quarter 2022 
Report & FY 2020-2021 Report 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on the Annual Activity Report from Grimes Health 
Resources Center for FY 2020-21 and request for funding for FY 2021-22. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Phyllis Allen from the Grimes Health Resource Center will present the annual activity 
report for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. Additionally, Grimes Health Resources Center is 
requesting disbursement of the $6,000 budgeted in fiscal year 2021-22. The City of 
Navasota has assisted Grimes Health Resource Center in the past in the amount of 
$6,000. Staff recommends approval of disbursement of the allocated budgeted funds 
of $6,000 to Grimes Health Resource Center.  
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
Receive annual report and approve annual funding disbursement of $6,000.00 
to the Grime Health Resource Center for FY 2021-2022. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: 100- General Fund 
 

Account Number: 100-582-202.02 
 

Amount Budgeted: $6,000 
 

Amount Requested: $6,000 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   

8/5/2022



 

210 S. Judson Street, Navasota Texas 77868   Phone: 936-870-4575   Fax: 936-870-4584  

Office hours: Monday – Thursday   8am – 5pm,  Friday 8am-3pm Closed 12pm -1pm   

 
Dear Mayor Miller and City Council Members, 
 
The Grimes Health Resource Center (GHRC) appreciates the support from you and the rest of the 
county. We are excited to be in all areas of the county and look forward to helping the citizens of Grimes 
County/Navasota throughout the upcoming year. We have put together a packet with information 
about what we have done this past year. We just want to make sure that you are aware of the 
wonderful things that the center is able to do with your gracious contribution. 
 
GHRC has had a successful year. We attended the CHI St. Joseph Health Fair, The Iola hay Day, and had 
several education classes within the county. We continue to partner with the City of Navasota for Gold 
Club. We have hosted a shoe drive and were able to assist several families with Christmas gifts and 
hams. We also assisted with the health status assessment. We continue to serve lunches to our 
homebound seniors through the senior meal program and continue to offer transportation.  
 
As you can see the Grimes Health Resource Center has done it’s best to meet the needs of the citizens of 
Navasota and Grimes County. We work diligently with service providers and other members of the 
community to see that needs are met whenever possible. Your continued support is appreciated and put 
to good use throughout the city. We greatly appreciate the $6,000.00 that you have given us for the 
current year and ask that you continue your support for the upcoming year. 

 
Included in the packet is the GHRC 3rd quarter report for the current year and the GHRC yearly activity 
report from 2020-2021. We hope you see the value in GHRC by the number of lives that have been 
touched. 
 
We encourage you to stop by the resource center or to attend any of our events. 
  
Thank you 
  
Grimes County Health Resource Commission 
  
Lara Meece, GHRC Executive Director  



APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Service Information 24 40 45 109

Service Coordination 2 4 8 14

Medication Assistance 1 0 0 1

Senior Meals Clients Served 31 30 33 94

Transportation Clients Served 19 30 24 73

Scotty's House 3 2 0 5

Telehealth 26 17 28 71

TOTAL CLIENT ENCOUNTERS 106 123 138 367

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Home Delivered Meals 594 612 642 1848

Congregate Meals 45 33 0 78

Total Meals Served 639 645 642 1926

Senior Bags Distributed 65 84 69 218

Total Clients Served 31 30 33 94

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Incoming Phone Calls 232 340 334 906

Service Information 24 40 45 109

Service Coordination 2 4 8 14

Walk-ins 26 58 26 110

TOTAL I&R 284 442 413 1139

CLIENT ENCOUNTERS

INFORMATION & REFERRAL

SENIOR MEALS

TRANSPORTATION

GHRC THIRD QUARTER REPORT 2022

APRIL - JUNE



APR MAY JUN TOTAL

New Clients 0 1 0 1

Existing Clients 19 29 24 72

Total Clients Served 19 30 24 73

Existing Clients-1st Trip-Mo. 19 29 24 72

Existing Clients-Subseq. Trip 22 25 35 82

TOTAL TRIPS 41 55 59 155

Wheel Chair Rides 0 0 0 0

Driver miles 797 1360 1280.8 3437.8

Driver hours 50 68 74.25 192.25

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Gold Club 27 23 23 73

Medication Safety 12 12

0

0

TOTAL 27 23 35 85

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Food Assistance 6 3 4 13

Assist with other need (bills, etc) 10 20 26 56

St. Vincent De Paul Meeting 25 25

Legal Aid 1 1

Focusing Families 1 1

42 Place resource Seminar 33 33

Golden Creek 10 10

BVCAP Intake 26 26

BVCAP Intake GHRC Assistance 33 33

Bedias Women's Club 10 10

Senior Day - GC fair 119 119

TOTAL CLIENTS SERVED 86 92 149 327

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Appointments 37 23 36 96

Clients Served 26 17 28 71

IN-KIND VALUE OF $3,120 $2,040 $3,360 8520

APR MAY JUN TOTAL

Referrals received 3 11 2 16

EMERGENCY ROOM REFERRALS

OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

EDUCATION EVENTS

TELEHEALTH



Clients spoke with 4 4 2 10

Set up appointment at HRC 1 3 0 4

Information Given 1 3 1 5













 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

GRIMES COUNTY  

HEALTH RESOURCE COMMISSION 
YEARLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

OCTOBER 2020 – SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

As presented by the 

Grimes County Health Resource Commission 

 

February 2022



 

 

GHRC Community Activity Highlights 
 
October 2020 

CHI Grimes St. Joseph Drive Thru Health Fair - 38 attendees received information about GHRC 
Gold Club - 10 people in attendance 
Anderson Trunk or Treat – 300+ information handed out 
Donated item for client assistance – 5 clients helped 
Food Assistance – 9 clients helped 
Basic needs assistance – 7 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 3 clients helped 
  
November 2020 
Medicare Part D enrollment assistance – 6 clients helped 
Gold Club -11 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 11 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 11 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 2 clients helped 
  
December 2020 
Coats/blankets - 85 items handed out 
Gold Club -10 people in attendance 
Christmas gifts – 6 children received gifts 
Christmas gifts - 39 seniors received gifts 
Blessing Bags (bags of food) - Given to 29 home bound seniors in need 
Navasota Head Start parent meeting - 50 information bags were handed out 
Christmas Hams – 12 clients received 
Food Assistance – 8 clients helped 
Basic Needs assistance – 9 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 4 clients helped 
 
January 2021 
Gold Club – 9 people in attendance 
Shiro Senior Lunch – 19 people received information 
Food Assistance – 4 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 8 clients helped 
  
February 2021 
Gold Club –Cancelled due to weather 
Food Assistance – 5 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 5 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 1 clients helped 
  
March 2021 
Gold Club- 7 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 4 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 5 clients helped 



 

 

 
 April 2021 
Gold Club – 7 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 3 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 5 client helped 
  
May 2021 
Gold Club – 12 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 3 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 8 clients helped 
  
June 2021 
Senior Day at the Grimes County Fair – 154 people in attendance 
Gold Club –32 people in attendance 
Seniors Eating Well Education – 11 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 3 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 10 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 3 clients helped 
  
July 2021 
Gold Club –24 people in attendance 
Seniors Eating Well education – 20 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 5 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 9 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 4 clients helped 
  
August 2021 
Gold Club – 20 people in attendance 
Making Moves with Diabetes class – 14 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 3 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 6 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 2 clients helped 
  
September 2021 
Gold Club – 24 people in attendance 
Making Moves with Diabetes class – 6 people in attendance 
Fall Prevention Awareness – 20 people in attendance 
Food Assistance – 3 clients helped 
Basic Needs Assistance – 4 clients helped 
Covid Referrals/Assistance – 1 clients helped 
 

 



 

 

 
 
Over the last year, the Grimes Health Resource Center (GHRC) has been successful in its efforts to help the 

citizens of Grimes County even with the challenges of dealing with a pandemic. These efforts are not possible 

without the partnerships with our stakeholders and other organizations. 

GRHC has continued to meet the needs of our clients during incredible circumstances. We put new protocols 

into place to ensure the health and wellness for clients and staff. However, we have continued to assist clients 

with their needs.   

 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

32 36 29 28 33 24 22 30
56

20
36 42

9 11 16 8 5
5 5

8

10

9
7 8

48
52 56

41 27 52 46 35

45

41
44

52

10
11 10

9
0

7
7 12

32

44 20

50
27

30 29

18

16

44
29 21

30

43
26

23

35
34 34

30

28

28

30 34

33
33

34

31

Client Encounters

Service Information Service Coordination Transportation clients Served

Education Telehealth Senior Meals

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

725
652

704

569

411

596 583
620

681 685 671 646

141
92 76 69 75

133
91 85 90

33 37 21

Senior Meals

Home Delivered Meals Congregate Meals



 

 

Our senior meal program is going well. We continue to have a need for this service in our community. The 

clients who are on the program receive a hot meal Monday – Friday at lunch. This program ensures that our 

homebound seniors are receiving a hot meal and it also allows us to visit with a person who would not 

otherwise have any visitors. In fiscal year 2021, we served 8,486 meals to homebound clients and the one of 

the senior centers in Grimes County.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Navasota 44 44 47 39 24 44 42 34 40 41 39 41

Anderson 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Richards 5 8 9 4 3 8 4 4 3 2 5 7

Plantersville 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 4

Iola 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bedias 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Rides by Town

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

7

6

5

1

2 2

5

4

5

4

0

3

Wheelchair Rides



 

 

 
 

Our transportation program is a big part of the day to day operations at GHRC. We have a van that is used to 

transport clients to doctor’s appointments, grocery store, etc. Due to our partnership with the Brazos Transit 

District and Grimes County, we have a mini bus that is wheel chair accessible. This mini bus continues to be a 

useful in assisting with wheel chair clients and seniors who have a hard time getting in other forms of 

transportation. Through the generosity of Grimes County, we have a part time driver that drives the bus. In 

fiscal year 2021, we were able to transport a total of 279 individuals for a total of 539 rides.  

 

Wal- Mart , 124

Grocery Store, 83

GHRC, 11

Bank, 28

Local Doctor Visit, 129

BCS Doctor Visit, 138

Pharmacy, 46

Dollar Store, 31

Food Pantry, 48

Education, 73

Bill Pay, 13

Misc., 59

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

TOTALS

Ride Destinations

85

6

39

29

61

12
5

Coat Drive Christmas Help -
Kids

Senior Christmas
Gifts

Blessing Bags Food Asssitance Christmas Hams Misc donations

Outreach Activities



 

 

 

 

 
 

In an effort to get our information out, we attend health fairs and other events throughout the county on a 

regular basis. We were able to give our information to 567 people in fiscal year 2021 at these events. We are 

very pleased with the number of people we were able to give information to since events were not as busy as 

in previous years. We also have outreach activities that we host at the resource center such as coat drives, 

clothing donations, food donations, Christmas gifts, etc. In FY 2021, we gave out 237 items to people in need. 

GHRC does it’s best to help clients meet all of their needs. We work with other agencies to help with bill 

payments and other basic needs. GHRC is also able to offer limited help to meet these needs with donations 

and other funds that come into the office.  

 

 
GHRC is dedicated to bringing health education to the people of Grimes County. We were very happy to be 

able to start our education classes back in the community. We took extra precautions to ensure everyone’s 

safety and as you can see people were ready to get out and participate. We are very excited that the numbers 

for Gold Club have more than doubled.  In fiscal year 2021, we had 237 participants at our educational events. 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Head Start Parent
meeting

Medicare Part D
Enrollment Help

Shiro Senior Lunch Senior Day - GC Fair Anderson Trunk or
Treat

Drive Thru health
fair/flu shots

Outreach Events

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Fall Prevention Awareness 20

Making Moves with Diabetes 14 6

Seniors Eating Well 11 20

Gold Club 10 11 10 9 0 7 7 12 32 24 20 24

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
e

o
p

le

Education



 

 

 

 
 
GHRC is continuing to work with the CHI St. Joseph Grimes Emergency Room to assist clients in finding a 
medical home and assisting them with other needs they may have. These referrals are made by giving 
information about the health resource center to the people who come into the emergency room who do not 
have a primary care physician or insurance. In FY 2021, we received 140 referrals. We were able to speak with 
84 people and give information to 44 of them. Due to the efforts of all involved only 6 people who were 
referred to GHRC returned to the emergency room. 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Emergency Room Referrals

Referals Clients spoke with Appt. at GHRC Information given



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

Agenda Date Requested: August 8 2022  
Requested By: Lance Hall, Finance Director  
Department: Finance  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: No-New-Revenue Tax Rate Calculation 
and Budget Calendar 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on proposal to adopt tax rate for 2022 and 
announce time, date, and place of public hearings and the meeting to vote on the 
tax rate. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 

The Grimes County Appraisal District calculated the No-New-Revenue Tax Rate 
at $0.4958 and the Voter-Approval Tax Rate at $0.5560. The No-New-Revenue Tax 
Rate will impose the same amount of taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed 
in both years. The Voter-Approval Tax Rate is the highest tax rate a taxing unit can 
adopt without holding an election. 
 
The proposed total Tax Rate is $0.5560; therefore, a public hearing on the tax rate is 
not required. The proposed tax rate is a reduction of $0.0133 or 2.3% from the current 
tax rate. The fiscal year 2022-23 proposed budget was built around a tax rate of 
$0.5560. The breakdown of the tax rate is as follows: 

 
Maintenance & Operations (General Fund) = $0.49686 
Interest & Sinking (Debt Service Fund) = $0.0592 

 
In accordance with current State legislation, staff will place a notice in the Navasota 
Examiner informing the public of the date and time the governing body will vote and 
approve the tax rate.  Staff anticipates publishing the notice seven (7) days prior to the 
public meeting, which will take place on September 12, 2022.  Finally, be advised that 
tonight’s action regarding the approval of the proposed tax rate will be a record vote 
that will be published on the notice regarding the public meeting on the 12th. 
 
Staff has included budget calendar. 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
“I move that the City of Navasota propose to adopt a tax rate of $0.5560/$100 for 
tax year 2022 and hold a public hearing at 6:00 P.M. on September 12, 2022  at 
the City Council chambers located at 200 East McAlpine Street; a second public 
hearing at 6:00 P.M. on September 26, 2022 at the City Council chambers located 
at 200 East McAlpine Street; and a meeting to adopt the tax rate on first reading 
at 6:00 P.M. on September 12, 2022 at the City Council chambers located at 200 
East McAlpine Street and a meeting to adopt the tax rate on second  reading at 
6:00 P.M. on September 26, 2022 at the City Council chambers located at 200 
East McAlpine Street.” 
 
Take a record vote on the proposed tax rate of $0.5560 cents for fiscal year 2022-
23. 
 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



































 

 

 

City of Navasota, Texas 
Budget Calendar 
Fiscal Year 2023 

 

Date   Activity 

July 5-7  Conducted Department Budget Review Meetings 

July 8   Conducted Supplemental Budget Meeting with all departments 

August 8  File budget with City Secretary  
[Local government code states we are supposed to approve budget 30th 
day. The 2nd reading of the tax rate ordinance is scheduled for 9-26; 
therefore, must be filed by 8-27] 
Council to Propose Tax Rate and announce Public Hearing 

 

August 10  Notice to Navasota Examiner on Budget hearing 
   Notice to Navasota Examiner Tax-Prepared by GCAD 
 

August 15-TBD Conducted City Manager Budget Workshop with City Council 

August 22  Workshop to discuss budget (4:30PM) 
   Public hearing on budget (6:00PM)  
 

September 12  Ratify Tax Increase reflected in the Budget 
Public hearing on Tax Rate 

   Vote on Budget First Hearing (6:00PM) 
   Vote on Tax Rate First Reading 
   Republic Services CPI rate adjustment first reading ordinance 
 

September 26  Vote on Budget Second Reading 
Vote on Tax Rate Second Reading 

   Republic Services CPI second reading ordinance 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Tiffany Byers, Director  
Department: Library  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits: Library Advisory Board Applications 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on appointment to the Library Advisory Board. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Gail Plauche resigned from the Library Advisory Board on July 1, 2022.  The City of 
Navasota advertised on social media for applications from the public to fill this 
vacancy. There are no residency requirements for member of the Library Advisory 
Board (they are not required to live within the Navasota city limits). To-date, staff has 
received four (4) applications. Those applicants are 
 

• Gail Swanlund 
• Chelsea Garcia 
• Deborah Grimes 
• Jessica Matthews 

  
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
Appoint one member to fill the vacancy on the Library Advisory Board with the 
term ending in September 2022. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   

8/5/2022

















 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Interlocal Agreement 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
Consideration and possible action on entering into a Master Service Interlocal 
Agreement with Brazos Valley Council of Governments (BVCOG) for fiber internet 
services. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 

Multiple city services have transitioned to internet cloud-based platforms. Current 
examples include the Building/Permitting, Code Enforcement, Development Services, 
and Rec Desk facility rental portals. Also, in the coming months our utility billing 
software that runs our day-to-day billing transactions will be migrating to the cloud along 
with our Tyler Technology Incode financial suite. 

Cloud-based platforms are hosted off-site and allow for ease of access, continuity, and 
scalability of services; however, there are drawbacks to moving to the cloud, specifically 
internet availability and reliability. To mitigate potential down time in the future, staff is 
recommending a secondary redundant internet connection with Brazos Valley Council 
of Governments (BVCOG) for situations where our primary CenturyLink/Lumen internet 
connection is down. Staff has worked closely with BVCOG and our legal counsel on an 
interlocal agreement, which has been attached for your consideration. 

BVCOG will impose a one-time installation charge of $100, and monthly cost for this 
service is $300.00. If approved, staff would find savings within their current fiscal year 
budget to cover the $700.00 for the one-time setup cost along with August and 
September monthly fee. Staff has included $3,600 in next year’s proposed budget to 
cover the annual cost of $3,600. Staff recommends City Council approve the interlocal 
agreement with BVCOG for internet services. 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: 100 – General Fund 
 

Account Number: 100-596-400.03 
 

Amount Budgeted: $0 
 

Amount Requested: $3,600 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



Approve a Master Service Interlocal Agreement wit Brazos Valley Council of 
Governments (BVCOG) for fiber internet services. 

 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



MASTER SERVICE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT                

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
MSA# ________________________ 

1 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

 

This Master Service Interlocal Agreement (as 

defined by Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 

Code) (“MSA”) is made and entered into between 

Brazos Valley Council of Governments, a 

political subdivision of the State of Texas with 

offices at 3991 East 29th Street, Bryan, Texas 

77805 (“BVCOG”) and  City of Navastoa  

(“Customer”),a home rule municipality with 

offices at 200 E. McAlpine, Navasota Tx,  and is 

effective as of the date of the last signature (the 

“Effective Date”).  Each may be referred to herein 

as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

 

The terms and conditions in this MSA, any 

attachments, and any Service Order Form(s) 

(“SOFs”), will govern the provision of data and/or 

communications services, including capacity, 

conduit and related services (“Services”) from 

BVCOG and to Customer.  In the event of a 

conflict or ambiguity among terms in the SOF and 

the MSA, the SOF will control with respect to the 

Services described in the SOF in question. 

 

1.  Term: The term of this MSA shall commence 

on the Effective Date and shall terminate on the 

later of: (a)  3 year(s) following the Effective Date 

or (b) the expiration of the last effective SOF 

(“Term”), unless terminated earlier as provided in 

this MSA.  The term of each Service will 

commence on the Service Activation Date (defined 

below) and continue for the duration specified in 

the applicable SOF (“Service Term”).  Each 

Service Term shall automatically renew at the end 

of the initial Service Term for a new Service Term 

that is month to month, unless otherwise specified 

on the SOF, or unless either Party provides written 

notice of non-renewal at least sixty (60) days prior 

to the end of the Service Term. BVCOG reserves 

the sole and exclusive right to determine its service 

area, and the right to maintain, reconfigure, or 

discontinue any Service or product.  

  

2.  Service Order Process:  Customer may execute 

one or more SOFs (see Attachment A, hereby 

referenced and incorporated), which are 

automatically incorporated into this MSA and 

subject to these terms and conditions.  To order a 

Service, Customer must execute the SOF provided 

by BVCOG. Customer may order additional 

Services from time to time by executing additional 

SOFs.  The Service Level MSA ("SLA") (see 

Attachment B, hereby referenced and 

incorporated), if applicable to the Services, is 

attached to the SOF, and incorporated by reference 

herein and therein.  Upon receipt of an executed 

SOF, BVCOG will email an order 

acknowledgment letter to Customer.  Within five 

(5) business days following the issuance of the 

order acknowledgement letter, BVCOG will either: 

(a) accept the SOF; (b) request clarification of 

information on the SOF, or (c) reject the SOF.  

BVCOG is under no obligation to accept an SOF, 

and Customer can cancel an SOF upon written 

notice before BVCOG issues a Firm Order 

Commitment (“FOC”) date without penalty, fee or 

other obligation (“Cancellation Window”).  

 

After installing a Service, BVCOG will email an 

order completion letter to Customer.  If Customer 

does not notify BVCOG in writing within  forty 

eight (48) hours of receipt of the order completion 

letter that the Services do not conform to 

BVCOG’s specifications (with evidence of such 

non-conformance included in the notice), or if 

BVCOG has not performed the installation by the 

FOC date due to Customer’s failure to satisfy any 

of its obligations under this MSA related to 

installation, or if Customer begins using the 

Service for any purpose other than acceptance 

testing, the Service shall be deemed accepted and 

such date shall constitute the “Service Activation 

Date.” 

 

2.  Billing and Payment:  Beginning on the 

Service Activation Date, BVCOG will invoice 

Customer monthly in advance for the Monthly 

Recurring Charge (“MRC”) set forth in the 

applicable SOF.  All amounts are due on the 

invoice date, but amounts will not be considered 

past due until thirty (30) calendar days from the 

invoice date.  Past due balances are subject to an 

interest charge calculated from the date thirty-one 



 

2 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

(31) calendar days from the invoice date through 

the date of receipt of payment at the lesser rate of 

one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the 

maximum lawful rate allowable under applicable 

state law.  If Customer disputes any charges billed 

hereunder, Customer must submit a documented 

claim regarding the billed amount within sixty (60) 

days of receipt of the invoice on which the disputed 

charges appear.   

 

BVCOG will invoice Customer for Services within 

one hundred and eighty (180) days of the date the 

Services were provided.  Customer is not obligated 

to pay charges for any service invoiced more than 

one hundred and eighty (180) days after close of 

the billing month in which the charges were 

incurred.  

 

BVCOG will invoice Customer for applicable 

Taxes and Surcharges (defined below) and will 

identify such Taxes and Surcharges as line item 

charges on the invoice separate from the MRCs for 

the Services.  Customer will be liable for Taxes and 

Surcharges that were assessed by or paid to an 

appropriate taxing authority within the applicable 

statute of limitations period excluding those on 

BVCOG’s income tax.  If Customer fails to pay 

any Taxes and Surcharges properly billed, then as 

between BVCOG and Customer, Customer will be 

solely responsible for payment of the Taxes and 

Surcharges, including penalty and interest. If 

applicable, Customer shall provide BVCOG with 

appropriate tax exemption certificates 

demonstrating that it maintains tax-exempt status 

from collection of all or part of these types of 

charges.  Customer shall keep its billing address 

and contact information current and shall be 

responsible for paying all reasonable collection 

costs incurred by BVCOG (including, without 

limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees) related to 

unpaid invoices. All charges for Services set forth 

in an SOF will be in U.S. dollars. 

 

“Tax” or “Taxes” or “Surcharges” mean any 

federal, state or local excise, gross receipts, value 

added, sales, use or other similar tax, fee, tax-like 

fee or surcharge of whatever nature and however 

designated imposed, or sought to be imposed, on or 

with respect to purchases by Customer from 

BVCOG for consideration under this MSA, which 

BVCOG is required or permitted by law or a tariff 

to collect from Customer; provided, however, that 

the term "Tax" will not include any tax on 

BVCOG's corporate existence, status, income, 

corporate property or payroll taxes. 

 

3. Termination:  Either Party may terminate a 

Service for “Default” which shall mean: (i) in the 

case of a failure to pay any amount when due under 

this MSA or any SOF, if Customer fails to pay such 

amount within five (5) business days after notice 

specifying such failure; or (ii) in the case of any 

other material breach of this MSA, a Party fails to 

cure such breach within thirty (30) days after 

written notice specifying such breach. In the event 

of a Default by Customer, BVCOG shall have the 

right to (a) suspend Service(s) to Customer; (b) 

cease accepting or processing orders for Service(s); 

and/or (c) terminate this MSA or any SOF.   

 

BVCOG may suspend or terminate this MSA or a 

Service without penalty if: (i) Customer or its end 

user fails to materially comply with any foreign, 

federal, state or local law or regulation related to 

the Service, or BVCOG has reasonable evidence 

that Customer or its end user has committed any 

illegal acts relating to the Service, including but not 

limited to, use of the Services for illegal purposes; 

or (ii) a regulatory body, governmental authority, 

or a court of competent jurisdiction restricts or 

prohibits BVCOG from providing a Service on the 

same terms and conditions as agreed herein; or (iii) 

BVCOG is unable to obtain or maintain on 

acceptable terms and pricing, any access right, 

permit or right of way necessary to provision the 

Services; or (iv) if it is necessary to protect the 

technical integrity of the BVCOG’s network due to 

actions by Customer or end user.  Any termination 

pursuant to section (i) or (iv) is considered a 

Customer Default. 

  

4. Customer’s Use of Services:  Customer shall 



 

3 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

use the Services in accordance with all applicable 

state, federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations 

in accordance with BVCOG policies. Customer is 

solely responsible for obtaining and maintaining all 

licenses, approvals, and regulatory authority for its 

operations.  Nothing in this MSA precludes 

Customer from reselling or providing third-party 

end users with services derived from these 

Services, provided that any such use of such 

Services is subject to the terms and conditions of 

this MSA and that BVCOG shall have no liability 

to Customer’s end users in relation to any Service 

and Customer shall indemnify BVCOG for any and 

all costs, damages, liabilities and expenses arising 

out of, or relating to, any claim by any such 

customer or end user.  

 

5. Customer Premises Equipment and 

Interconnection:  BVCOG will provide Service 

between the demarcation points listed on the SOF, 

or if it does not so specify, then between BVCOG’s 

distribution panels in the specified locations. 

Customer is responsible for all costs incurred on 

Customer’s side of the demarcation points, 

including but not limited to, costs for Customer 

premises equipment, interconnections, cross 

connects, hand-offs, installation charges, or any 

costs incurred at Customer’s request.  

 

If BVCOG installs fiber optic cable termination or 

related equipment (“BVCOG Equipment”) in 

Customer’s owned or controlled premises 

(“Premises”), BVCOG will notify Customer and 

provide Customer applicable environmental 

specifications.  Customer will comply with these 

specifications, keep the BVCOG Equipment secure 

and free of liens, and supply properly sized and 

protected power, HVAC, and fire suppression 

systems.  Customer shall notify BVCOG in 

advance of any repairs or maintenance to the 

Premises that may affect the BVCOG Equipment 

and shall not interfere with its operation.  BVCOG 

Equipment will remain the personal property of 

BVCOG, notwithstanding the fact that it may be 

affixed or attached to the Premises, and it will 

belong to and be removable by BVCOG during the 

term of this MSA or thereafter. Customer is 

responsible for obtaining and maintaining access 

rights to Premises and building during the 

applicable Service Term so that BVCOG may 

install, repair, maintain, inspect, operate, and 

remove Service components. If possible, Customer 

must provide BVCOG personnel access to Service 

components for maintenance activities twenty-four 

(24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week, on two 

(2) hours’ notice.  If this access is not possible, 

Customer must provide commercially reasonable 

access, but any interruption in Service due to 

BVCOG’s inability to access BVCOG Equipment 

will be excluded from calculations of service 

credits. 

 

6. Disclaimers and Limitation of Liability: 

BVCOG MAKES NO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES AS TO ANY SERVICE 

PROVISIONED HEREUNDER. BVCOG 

SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED 

WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT 

LIMITATION, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF 

MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A 

PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TITLE, AND 

PERFORMANCE OR INTEROPERABILITY OF 

THE SERVICE WITH ANY CUSTOMER OR 

END USER PROVIDED EQUIPMENT. 

 

WITH THE EXCEPTION OF 

INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, 

NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE 

OTHER FOR ANY INDIRECT, 

CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, 

INCIDENTAL, COVER-TYPE, OR PUNITIVE 

DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT 

LIMITATION, LOSS OF USE OR LOST 

BUSINESS OR GOODWILL, ARISING IN 

CONNECTION WITH THIS MSA OR BVCOG’S 

PROVISIONING OF THE SERVICES 

INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: (A) ANY 

SERVICE IMPLEMENTATION 

DELAYS/FAILURES; (B) LOST, DELAYED OR 

ALTERED MESSAGES/TRANSMISSIONS; OR 

(C) UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS TO OR THEFT 

OF CUSTOMER’S TRANSMITTED DATA, 



 

4 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

UNDER ANY THEORY OF TORT, 

CONTRACT, WARRANTY, STRICT 

LIABILITY, OR NEGLIGENCE, EVEN IF THE 

PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED, KNEW OR 

SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE 

POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 

WITH THE EXCEPTION OF 

INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, THE 

TOTAL LIABILITY OF BVCOG TO 

CUSTOMER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS 

MSA SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE LESSER 

OF DIRECT DAMAGES (“DIRECT 

DAMAGES” MEANS THOSE DAMAGES 

THAT FOLLOW IMMEDIATELY UPON THE 

ACT DONE AND WHICH ARISE 

NATURALLY OR ORDINARILY FROM 

BREACH OF CONTRACT, BUT AS USED 

HEREIN SHALL EXPRESSLY EXCLUDE ANY 

COVER-TYPE DAMAGES). CUSTOMER 

ACKNOWLEDGES AND ACCEPTS THE 

REASONABLENESS OF THE FOREGOING 

DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATIONS OF 

LIABILITY.  For purposes of this Section 6, all 

references to BVCOG and Customer to include 

their respective affiliates, end users, agents, 

lessors, officers, directors, shareholders, and 

employees. 

 

To the extent allowed by law, each Party 

(“Indemnitor") will defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless the other and its affiliates, employees, 

officers, directors and partners (each, an 

"Indemnitee") from and against all third-party 

claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs, fees and 

expenses, including without limitation reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, for physical damage to tangible 

property or bodily injury arising from Indemnitor's 

negligence or willful misconduct in connection 

with the performance of this MSA.    BVCOG will 

defend, indemnify and hold Customer and its 

Affiliates, employees, officers, directors and 

partners harmless from and against all third-party 

claims, actions, damages, liabilities, costs, fees and 

expenses, including without limitation reasonable 

attorneys’ fees, arising from BVCOG’s violation 

of any third-party intellectual property right due to 

the configuration of BVCOG’s network.  
 

7. General:  (a) Force Majeure:  Force Majeure 

Event means an event, other than a failure to 

comply with payment obligations, caused by any 

of the following conditions: act of God; fire; flood; 

labor strike; sabotage; fiber cut caused by a third-

party; material shortages or unavailability or other 

delay in delivery not resulting from the responsible 

Party’s failure to timely place orders therefor; 

power blackouts; lack of or delay in transportation; 

government codes, ordinances, laws, rules, 

regulations, permits, or restrictions; failure of a 

governmental entity or other party to grant or 

recognize a right of way, war or civil disorder; or 

any other cause beyond the reasonable control of 

such Party. Neither Party shall be liable to the other 

for any delay or failure in performance of any part 

of this MSA to the extent that a Force Majeure 

Event causes such delay or failure.  Further, 

BVCOG shall not be liable for any delay or failure 

in performance to the extent caused by Customer’s 

failure to perform any of its obligations under this 

MSA. 

 

(b) Governing Law:  This MSA is governed by 

and shall be construed in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Texas without regard to its choice of 

law principles, except and to the extent that the 

Communications Act of 1934, as amended by the 

Telecommunications Act of 1996, and as 

interpreted by the FCC, applies to this MSA. The 

United Nations Convention on the International 

Sale of Goods will not apply. The Parties consent 

to the exclusive personal jurisdiction and venue in 

Grimes County, Texas, if there is any dispute 

which cannot be settled. 

 

(c) Assignment: This MSA is not assignable or 

transferable by operation of law or otherwise by 

Customer without prior written consent of 

BVCOG, which consent shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. BVCOG may assign this MSA to any 

affiliate, or to a BVCOG successor pursuant to a 

reorganization or merger of its business, pursuant 

to any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of 



 

5 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

its assets, without Customer’s consent.  

 

(d) Waiver: The terms, covenants, representations, 

and warranties of this MSA may be waived only by 

a written instrument executed by an authorized 

representative of a Party waiving compliance.  

Except as otherwise provided for herein, neither 

Party’s failure, at any time, to enforce any right or 

remedy available to it hereunder shall be construed 

as a continuing waiver of such right or a waiver of 

any other provision hereunder, including but not 

limited to sovereign immunity.  

 

(e) Publicity:  Customer grants BVCOG the right 

to disclose that it is a customer of BVCOG and to 

display Customer’s logo on BVCOG’s website.  

BVCOG shall not acquire any other rights in 

Customer’s trade names, trademarks, product 

names, or logos.  BVCOG grants Customer the 

right to disclose that it is a supplier to Customer 

and to display BVCOG’s logo on Customer’s 

website. Customer shall not acquire any other 

rights in BVCOG’s trade names, trademarks, 

product names, or logos. 

 

(f) Authorization:  Customer represents and 

warrants that the full legal name of Customer 

intended to receive the benefits and Services 

hereunder is accurately set forth herein.  Each Party 

represents and warrants that: (a) the person signing 

this MSA has been duly authorized to execute on 

its behalf; and (b) the execution hereof is not in 

conflict with law, the terms of any charter or bylaw, 

or any MSA to which such Party is bound or 

affected.  

 

(g) Headings:  The headings used in this MSA are 

for convenience only and do not in any way limit 

or otherwise affect the meaning of any terms 

herein. The meanings of defined terms are equally 

applicable to the singular and plural forms of the 

defined terms. 

 

(h) Third Party Beneficiaries:  The 

representations, warranties, covenants and MSAs 

of the Parties set forth herein are not intended for, 

nor shall they be for the benefit of or enforceable 

by, any third-party or person not a Party hereto, 

including without limitation, Customer’s end 

users. 

 

(i) Relationship:  Neither Party shall have the 

authority to bind the other by contract or otherwise 

or make any representations or guarantees on 

behalf of the other.  Both Parties acknowledge and 

agree that the relationship arising from this MSA is 

one of independent contractor, and does not 

constitute an agency, joint venture, partnership, 

employee relationship, or franchise.  

 

(j) Severability: If any provision of this MSA is 

held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 

remainder of the MSA terms and conditions will 

remain in full force and effect, unless such survival 

would be inconsistent with any express termination 

right provided for herein.  If any such provision 

may be made enforceable by a limitation of its 

scope or time period, such provision will be 

deemed to be amended to the minimum extent 

necessary to render it enforceable. 

 

(k) Integration:  This MSA, attachments, 

applicable SLA(s), and applicable SOF(s) set forth 

the entire MSA of the Parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 

MSAs and understandings whether written or oral.  

The  

 

SOFs applicable to this MSA are hereby 

incorporated by reference as though fully set forth 

herein. 

 

(l) Survival:  The expiration or termination of this 

MSA shall not relieve either Party of those 

obligations that by their nature are intended to 

survive. 

 

(m) Planned System Maintenance: Planned 

System Maintenance means maintenance on a 

network facility that is related to Service delivery, 

either directly (maintenance of transmission 

equipment, fiber cable, etc.) or indirectly 



 

6 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

(maintenance of power, environmental systems, 

etc.). BVCOG usually conducts Planned System 

Maintenance outside of normal working hours, i.e. 

12:00 AM to 6:00 AM local time.  BVCOG will 

use reasonable efforts to minimize any Service 

interruptions that might occur as a result of Planned 

System Maintenance, and any Planned System 

Maintenance shall not constitute an outage or 

interruption available for an outage credit. 

 

(n) Notice Information:  Except as otherwise 

specifically provided herein, all notices required to 

be given by either Party hereunder shall be in 

writing and (except invoices) delivered by hand, 

courier, internationally-recognized overnight 

delivery service, or registered or certified mail 

return receipt requested (if within the U.S).  Any 

notice or other communication shall be deemed 

given when received or refused and shall be sent to 

the addresses below.   

 

To BVCOG:   

 

Brazos Valley Council of Governments 

3991 E. 29th Street 

Bryan, Texas 77805   

Attn: BVCOG Operating Officer  

   

To Customer:  

 

City of Navasota   

 200 E. McAlpine   

 Navasota, Texas 77868   

 Attn: City Manager   

 

(o) Disputes: All claims, disputes and other 

matters in question arising out of or relating to this 

agreement with a breach thereof, except for claims 

which have been waived by the making or 

acceptance of final payment, shall be decided by 

mediation or non-binding arbitration pursuant to 

the Texas Arbitration Dispute Resolution Act, 

(Texas Practice and Remedies Code, Chapter 154), 

and in accordance with the rules then in effect 

unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. Each 

party shall pay its own legal and other costs relating 

to the mediation or the non-binding arbitration 

regardless of the outcome of the mediation or the 

non-binding arbitration. The mediator should be 

agreed upon by both parties and mediation will be 

conducted in Grimes County, Texas. Participation 

in any Alternative Dispute Resolution does not 

constitute a waiver of any immunity or protections 

afforded to BVCOG or Customer. 

 

(p) Confidential Information:  Commencing on 

the date Customer executes this MSA and 

continuing for a period of one (1) year following 

the expiration or other termination of this MSA, 

each Party shall protect as confidential and not 

disclose to any third-party any Confidential 

Information received from the disclosing Party or 

otherwise discovered by the receiving Party during 

the term of this MSA, including, but not limited to, 

the pricing and terms of this MSA and any 

information relating to the disclosing Party's 

technology, business affairs, and marketing or 

sales plans, provided that such Confidential 

Information is marked as confidential or, given the 

nature of the information or the circumstances 

surrounding its disclosure, such information 

reasonably should be considered as confidential 

(collectively the "Confidential Information"). The 

foregoing restrictions on disclosure of Confidential 

Information do not apply to information that: (a) is 

in the possession of the receiving Party at the time 

of its disclosure and is not otherwise subject to 

obligations of confidentiality; (b) is or becomes 

known through no wrongful act or omission of the 

receiving Party; (c) is received without restriction 

from a third-party free to disclose it without 

obligation to the disclosing Party; (d) is developed 

independently by the receiving Party without 

reference to the Confidential Information, or (e) is 

required to be disclosed by law, regulation, or court 

or governmental order including but not limited to 

the Texas Public Information Act. 

 

(q) Cooperation with Law Enforcement: 

BVCOG must cooperate with law enforcement 

organizations that have lawfully requested 

information regarding Customer and provide such 



 

7 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

organizations with any information requested, 

including, but not limited to, names, email 

addresses, mailing or contact addresses, IP 

addresses, and telephone numbers. Customer shall 

assist BVCOG in responding to any state or federal 

request for information regarding Customer or its 

employees, representatives, or any person 

authorized to use Customer’s Service pursuant to 

the Communications Assistance for Law 

Enforcement Act (“CALEA”) and/or any other 

similar or related statute.  

 

(r) Non-Appropriations Clause: This agreement 

is contingent upon the continued availability of 

funding. If funds become unavailable through lack 

of appropriations, budget cuts, City Council 

consolidations, or any other disruption of current 

or future appropriations, this agreement may be 

terminated by Customer with no penalty. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have 

executed this MSA in multiple original 

counterparts as of the day and year written.  

 

(“Customer”) 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

 

Print Name:______________________________ 

 

Title:____________________________________  

 

Date:____________________________________  

 

 

 

BVCOG 

 

 

By:_____________________________________ 

Print Name:___Bo Moncivais________________  

Title:___I.T. Manager______________________ 

Date:___7/13/2022________________________

 

 



ATTACHMENT A 

5 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

 

Service Order Form 

MSA No.: 00000155 
 

Service Order No.: 00000199  Date: 7/13/2022 

This Quote is Valid Through: 8/13/2022    

 

Account Information Billing Information ☒(Same as above) 

Customer Name: City of Navasota Customer Name:  

Address: 200 E. McAlpine Address:  

City: Navasota State: Tx City:  

Zip Code: 77868 Phone:  State:  

Email: hmai@navasotatx.gov Zip Code:  

 

 

Service Unit Amount Per Month Term Installation Charge 

Internet Service 100 mb  $300 36 months $100 

     

     

 

Notes, and/or Additional Terms & Conditions 

Customer will be pay $100 for fiber patch cord and fiber installation. Customer will be handed off a MMF patch cord. 

 

BY SIGNING BELOW, OR USING THE SERVICES, CUSTOMER AGREES TO BE BOUND BYTHE TERMS AND CONDITIONS, THE FEE 

SCHEDULE, AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE TERMS GOVERNING THE SERVICES. CUSTOMER WILL BE INVOICED ACCORDINGLY. 

 

 

OFFICE USE ONLY  

   

 Approved by:  Date:   

      

Installation Site Information 

Name: City of Navasota 

Address: 200 E. McAlpine 

City: Navasota 

State: Tx Zip Code: 77868 

Site Coordinates  (if available)   

 Latitude:  Longitude:  

   

Customer Signature  Date 

 

 

 

Printed Name  Title 



ATTACHMENT B 

6 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

 

Service Level Agreement 

 
This Service Metrics Service Level Agreement (“SLA”) provides a detailed description of the Metrics for BVCOG’s service performance.  

This SLA covers the Broadband Services that BVCOG offers only.  This SLA does not apply to any other Services provided by BVCOG or 

Customer-provided circuits. 

 

This SLA is applicable to Customer alone.   
 

1. Overview 

 
1.A. This SLA provides detailed descriptions of Service Metrics for performance and is the basis for certain service credits that 

Customer may request from BVCOG if BVCOG fails to meet the Service Metrics detailed in this SLA.  

1.B.  Overview Definitions.  All capitalized terms not defined in this SLA shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Master 

Services Agreement between Customer and BVCOG.   

“Metric” means the performance measures for specific BVCOG functions and includes the Description, Measurement 

Method, Objective and Service Credit, if any. 

 “Description” means the specific BVCOG function measured. 

“Measurement Method” means the method that BVCOG uses to determine BVCOG’s performance and the frequency 

of the measurement. 

“Objective” means the target performance that BVCOG expects to achieve, as outlined herein. 

“Service Credit” means the credit to Customer’s invoice that Customer may request of BVCOG if BVCOG does not 

meet the Objective in the prescribed period. 

“Hard Down Circuit” An end user circuit is considered Hard Down when there is absolutely no traffic passing over the 

end user circuit. Partial bandwidth availability does not qualify towards a Hard Down circuit. 

1.C. Exceptions to BVCOG’s SLA Obligations.  Notwithstanding anything in this SLA to the contrary, BVCOG will only 

issue Service Credits to Customer upon BVCOG’s failure to meet Objectives for those Metrics to which Service Credits 
are specifically attached.  However, BVCOG will not be liable for Service Credits in the following situations (and as 

otherwise described in this SLA): 

(i) prior to the successful completion of installation (i.e., the Billing Start Date);  

(ii) interruptions of Service attributable to Customer, or any third party other than BVCOG or BVCOG’s 

authorized agents or suppliers; 

(iii) interruptions or delays  attributable to Customer’s CPE or other equipment, whether provided by BVCOG or 

others;  

(iv) interruptions during periods of scheduled maintenance or network upgrades; 

(v) interruptions during periods in which Customer elects not to release  its Service for testing and/or repair or 

does not respond to information or other requests by BVCOG; 

(vi) interruptions during any period when Customer releases a Service for maintenance or rearrangement purposes, 

or for implementation of a Customer order or request; 

(vii) interruptions during any period when BVCOG or its agents are not afforded access to that part of the 

Customer’s premises where the Services are terminated; 

(viii) interruptions not reported to BVCOG or where there is trouble reported, but no trouble found by BVCOG; or 

(ix) Force Majeure events. 

BVCOG will nevertheless use its reasonable efforts to seek a prompt resumption of Service and/or resolution of 

transmission problems in those circumstances where such efforts have a reasonable likelihood of achieving a 

resumption of Service. 



ATTACHMENT B 

7 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

1.D. Except for Installation Interval Service Credits, total service credits provided by BVCOG in a given month applicable 

to the Service may not exceed twenty percent (20%) of the monthly recurring fees charged by BVCOG during such 

month for such Service to a specific location.  Any service credits in excess of twenty percent (20%) will not carry over 

into later invoices.  Credits provided by BVCOG hereunder shall not be cumulative for any single failure. 

2. GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

2.A. “BVCOG Network” means the infrastructure, facilities, and equipment owned, leased, operated, or controlled by 
BVCOG used to provide Services.  The BVCOG Network excludes Customer Premises Equipment (“CPE”), inside 

wiring at Customer’s premises, and any network infrastructure, facilities, or other components not owned, leased, 

operated, or controlled by BVCOG.   
 

2.B. "Customer Network" means the infrastructure, facilities, and equipment owned operated, leased or controlled by 

Customer. 

 
2.C. A “Service Outage” on a specific Service provided to Customer at a specific location is deemed to have occurred when 

for the Broadband Services:  No packets can be exchanged between the BVCOG provided CPE (if any) and Customer 

via the fiber provided for the Service.    

 

3. CLAIMS PROCESS 

It is Customer’s responsibility to identify, request and document all valid SLA claims and corresponding Service 

Credits.  To be eligible for Service Credits, Customer must first report service availability, delay, or delivery events 
to BVCOG through standard trouble reporting/ticket mechanisms.  BVCOG will notify Customer of its resolution of 

the reported event.  Customer must request any applicable service credits by the 15th day of the month following the 

month in which the reported incident was resolved (in the case of credits for Average Service Availability, Mean 
Time to Repair, Average Round Trip Delay, and Average Data Delivery credits).  BVCOG will use reasonable 

commercial efforts to verify Customer’s request within forty-five (45) days of a complete and properly submitted 

credit request, and will apply any applicable Service Credits, as determined at BVCOG’s sole discretion, to 

Customer’s invoice issued on the first day of the month following BVCOG’s forty-five (45) day review. 

Customer may not, under any circumstances, submit credit requests beyond the timeframes specified above; BVCOG 

will not accept late credit requests. 

Requests for Service Credits must be submitted to BVCOG in the form reasonably designated by BVCOG.  Customer 

must submit a separate credit request for each service location for which Customer makes a claim.   

BVCOG will reject any credit requests that do not provide sufficient supporting information to allow BVCOG to 

verify the claim.  Such information must include: 

• Circuit/Fiber ID: The BVCOG ID number for the fiber facility terminating at the Customer 

demarcation point on which the incident occurred; 

• SLA Type: The specific type of credit being requested; 

• Trouble Ticket or Order #: The BVCOG trouble ticket number(s) on which the credit request is 

based; 

• Resolution Date: The date(s) of the resolution of the trouble ticket(s) for the incident; and 

• Other: Any other information that BVCOG may reasonably request to assist BVCOG in verifying 

Customer’s credit request. 

 

BVCOG does not guarantee that provision of the above information will be sufficient to allow BVCOG to verify the 
request.  BVCOG will inform Customer of credit requests that it rejects for insufficient information, and Customer will 

be allowed to resubmit such requests with additional supporting information within fifteen (15) days of BVCOG’s 

notification of its rejection of the credit request.  After Customer resubmits the credit request with the additional 

supporting information, the standard verification and crediting timelines (outlined above) will apply. 

BVCOG reserves the right to modify the format for submission of and information required for SLA credit requests 

with thirty (30) days’ notice to Customer. 

Customer must be current in all of its invoices to be eligible for any credits and may not withhold payments based 

on SLA credit requests.  BVCOG may, at its reasonable discretion, limit or eliminate Customer’s eligibility and ability 

to submit SLA credit requests if: (a) Customer fails to pay the undisputed portion of an invoice when due. 

 



ATTACHMENT B 

8 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

BVCOG will restore Customer’s ability to submit SLA credit requests once Customer has paid all amounts owed 

BVCOG (in case of failure to pay outstanding invoices. 

 

 

Metric for Average Service Availability 

 

Description: Percentage of minutes in a calendar month the Service did not experience a Service Outage 

 
Measurement Method:  Average Service Availability is measured performance of the COGNet network between the Customer’s 

demarcation/delivery point and the COGNet network.  Specifically, Average Service Availability is a percentage calculated as: 

 
Sum of Service Outage Duration 

1 – ( ---------------------------------------------------) x 100 

Total Available Time 
Where: 

 

Sum of Service Outage Duration = the total of the outage time, in minutes of the Customer’s Service affected by Service Outages 
during the reporting calendar month.  Outage time beings when the Customer or BVCOG, opens a trouble tick and ends when 

BVCOG notifies the Customer that the problem has been resolved, excluding hold time due to Customer. 

 
Total time average = (number of circuits/Services in service on the last day of the calendar month preceding the reporting month) 

x ((days in the reporting calendar month) x (minutes per day)). 

 
Objective: The objective is ninety-nine and ninety-nine one-hundredths percent (99.99%) availability. 

 
Service Credit – if applicable: 

  For each reporting calendar month in which BVCOG fails to achieve the Average Service Availability, Customer will 

be eligible for a Service Credit in the amount defined below: 
 

% Average Service Availability Credit % of the total monthly recurring 

charges for all circuits impacted by 

Service Outages 

99.90% - 99.989% 5% 

Less than 99.90% 10% 

 

 

 

In addition to the above the following items are included and made a part of this SLA: 

 
1. Circuit Availability (or Uptime): ≥99.9% 

2. Packet Loss: ≤0.1%, across provider’s network. 

3. Network Latency: ≤30ms, across provider’s network. 
4. Provider NOC response time for conditions outside of the parameters listed:  ≤15 minutes for response and ticket to be 

generated. 

5. Provider response time to be onsite to diagnose and repair in case of Network Outage: ≤2 hours. 
  



ATTACHMENT B 

9 of 9 BVCOG Confidential and Proprietary ______  ______ 

 

Emergency Contact list 
 
We pride ourselves in exceptional customer service. We have experienced support staff to 

assist you with any issues related to the service. We are willing and have the knowledge to 

assist you with any issues you may have regarding the services provisioned and or any 

emergencies that may arise.  

After hours Support:   24 x 7 x 365 

 

BVCOG Network Operation Center support: 
 
FiberTown Inc. Support  
110 N. Main Street 
Bryan, TX 77803 
 
Hours: 24/7/365 
 

Phone:  Fibertown:    888-501-4368;     979-393-9100 

 
Email: NOC@fibertown.com            BryNOC@fibertown.com 
 
 

Non-emergency Staff Support 
BVCOG  
 
Address:  P.O. Box 4327 
 4001 E. 29th Street; Suite 1104 

Bryan, TX 77805-4327 

Hours: Mon - Fri 8am - 5pm 

 Phone: 979-595-2950 

Email:  Support@Brazos2020.org 
 
 
Call, text or email: 
 
Bo Moncivais, IT Director  979-777-1841  -  bmoncivais@bvcog.org 
 
Anthony Munoz, Network Manager  979-224-7425  -  anthony.munoz@bvcog.org 
 

 

mailto:NOC@fibertown.com
mailto:BryNOC@fibertown.com
mailto:Support@Brazos2020.org
mailto:bmoncivais@bvcog.org
mailto:anthony.munoz@bvcog.org


 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Lupe Diosdado, Director  
Department: Development Services  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: Final 380 Agreement 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with RAM 
NAVASOTA, LLC regarding the development of a Jack in the Box Restaurant, widening of 
County Road 425 and other commercial improvements to the property located near the 
corner of County Road 425 (also known as Durden Street) and State Highway 105 East, 
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Mark Holmes with RAM NAVASOTA, LLC approached City of Navasota staff while 
working on the plans for the Jack in the Box Mr. Holmes conveyed the current 
conditions of CR 425 are not adequate for the proposed improvements of the property 
and would not allow for proper use of the site. As a result, he has offered to widen 
approximately 425 linear feet of the north/south extension of County Road 425 (also 
known as Durden Street) to an improved 30-foot-wide road to accommodate for 
increased 2-way traffic. The developer has asked for City participation on improving the 
roadway, since the development will have a positive economic impact on the City of 
Navasota. Staff and Legal Counsel worked on a Chapter 380 agreement to reimburse 
up to one-third of the cost of construction for the road improvements.  
 
The estimated cost of construction is $220,000 and the proposed Chapter 380 
agreement indicates that the City of Navasota would reimburse the developer, in the 
form of a grant, equal to 1/3 the construction costs of the Durden Street improvements, 
not to exceed $73,333.33. The agreement is contingent upon the new businesses, with: 

 
• 1/3 of overall reimbursement (not to exceed $24,444.44) to be reimbursed upon 

the issuance of the certificate of occupancy for the new Jack in the Box 
restaurant at 2010 HWY 105 E, Navasota, TX 77868, located on lot two (2) of 
said property. 
 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: 100 - General Fund 
 

Account Number: 100-582-620.03 
 

Amount Budgeted: $73,000 
 

Amount Requested: $73,333.33 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



• 1/3 of overall reimbursement (not to exceed $24,444.44) to be reimbursed upon 
the proof of a fully executed lease agreement with a tenant and or issuance of 
the certificate of occupancy for the commercial space west of Jack in the Box 
restaurant at 2010 HWY 105 E, Navasota, TX 77868, located on lot one (1) of 
said property. 

 
• 1/3 of overall reimbursement (not to exceed $24,444.44) to be reimbursed upon 

the proof of fully executed lease agreement(s) and or issuance of the certificate 
of occupancy for the commercial space(s) south of Jack in the Box restaurant at 
2010 HWY 105 E, Navasota, TX 77868, located on lot three (3) of said property. 

 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
Approve Chapter 380 agreement with RAM NAVASOTA, LLC for a reimbursement 
of construction costs in the amount not to exceed $73,333.33. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



 1 

 Economic Development Agreement 

 
This Economic Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the 

CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule municipality (“City”) and 

KOLKHORST DEVELOPMENT NAVASOTA, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 

(“Developer”). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by §380.001, et seq., Texas Local Government Code, 

to promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and 

commercial activity within the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer owns multiple tracts of land in the City more particularly 

described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part of hereof for all purposes 

(“Property”), generally located near the intersection of North Post Oak Street and E. 

Washington Avenue (also known as State Highway No. 105); and  

 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop a restaurant and other commercial space on 

the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street lighting and planter boxes to match the design 

and character of such existing improvements and items located in the downtown area, and 

construct a new façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and 

Kolkhorst Development are currently located (collectively the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has advised the City that a key contributing factor that would 

enable the Developer to develop the Project, said Project being more fully described in 

Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes, would be an 

agreement by the City to provide an economic development grant to Developer to 

incentivize development and construction of the Project to align with the current 

Washington Avenue design standards; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer has requested that the economic development grant to Developer 

consist of the reimbursement a portion of the City’s portion of the sales and use tax 

generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 1605 E. Washington Ave., 

Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Project is anticipated to result in the creation of jobs, capital investment, 

ad valorem tax revenues to the City, sales and use tax revenues to the City, and utility 

revenues to the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that providing an economic development grant to 

Developer in accordance with this Agreement will further the objectives of the City, will 

benefit the City and citizens, and will stimulate and benefit the local and regional 

economy; and 

 



 2 

WHEREAS, such economic development grant is being provided to assist Developer 

with development costs as a City economic development programs authorized by Chapter 

380, Texas Local Government Code; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, agreements, representations, 

and warranties set forth herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer agree as follows: 

 

AGREEMENTS 

 

Section 1.  Recitals 

 

 The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set 

forth. 

 

Section 2.  City Requirements 

 

In consideration of Developer’s: 1) construction of at least One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) of building and other 

improvements to said Property, excluding equipment, machinery, and other 

personal property, for the purpose of operating a restaurant on said Property; 2) 

Developer’s timely payment to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts of all 

sales tax generated from the Burger King Restaurant located on the Property; and 

3) Developer’s agreement to perform the other acts and obligations hereinafter 

described, City agrees, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein: 

 

(a) To reimburse Developer an amount of money equal to a percentage of annual 

sales and use taxes generated from the new Burger King restaurant location at 

1605 E. Washington Ave., Navasota, Grimes County, TX 77868 and paid by 

Developer to the City (and actually collected by the City) subsequent to the 

effective date of this Agreement, using the following schedule, commencing 

on the first date of collection of any sales and use tax amount generated from 

the new Burger King restaurant location and continuing for Five (5) years 

thereafter, at which time this Agreement shall terminate:  Year one, forty 

percent (40%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year two, thirty five percent (35%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year three, thirty percent (30%) of said 

sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the Developer; Year four, twenty 

five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes shall be reimbursed to the 

Developer; Year five, twenty five percent (25%) of said sales and use taxes 

shall be reimbursed to the Developer. Notwithstanding any term or provision 

of this Agreement, the maximum amount of sales and use tax to be reimbursed 

to the Developer pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed Twenty 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($20,000.00). Developer acknowledges and 

agrees that the purpose of the City entering into this Agreement is to 

encourage the development of the Property, and, therefore, Developer agrees 



 3 

to develop the Property and continue business operations during the term that 

this Agreement remains in effect. 

(b) To reimburse Developer for the actual material-only cost of the sidewalk 

pavers, street lights and planter boxes installed by the Developer, being more 

fully described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes. 

 

Section 3.  Developer’s Requirements 

 

 In consideration of the City agreeing to perform the foregoing, Developer agrees: 

 

(a) To construct a Burger King restaurant on the Property, develop a restaurant 

and other commercial space on the Property, install sidewalk pavers, street 

lighting and planter boxes to match the design and character of such existing 

improvements and items located in the downtown area, and construct a new 

façade on the existing structure where a Subway, a dry cleaners and Kolkhorst 

Development are currently located. The restaurant shall be opened to the 

public and begin to conduct business no later than one (1) year from the 

effective date of this Agreement. No sales tax or other reimbursement 

payments shall be made by the City to the Developer until the improvements 

required to be made by the Developer in accordance with this Agreement are 

completed. Developer shall certify in writing to the City the costs of 

construction of said improvements.  Such certification shall be deemed to be 

incorporated by reference herein and made a part hereof for all purposes; 

(b) To construct the Burger King restaurant to include the amenities described on 

the attached Exhibit “C.” Prior to beginning construction, the Developer must 

obtain the City’s approval of the construction plans so that the City is satisfied 

that the amenities will be constructed as represented by the Developer; 

(c) To operate a Burger King restaurant on the Property during the time this 

Agreement is in effect; 

(d) To make a total investment of at least One Million Two Hundred Thousand 

and No/100 Dollars ($1,200,000.00) in building and other improvements to 

the Property; 

(e) To employ an average of ten (10) FTEs per year at the Burger King restaurant 

facility on the Property upon the commencement of operating the restaurant 

and thereafter to allow a thirty percent (30%) grace factor as a condition of 

receiving the sales and use tax reimbursement payments from the City 

pursuant to Section 2(a) above. During any year in which this Agreement is in 

effect, in the event that the average FTEs drops below the grace factor number 

of seven (7) FTEs, Developer will forfeit the sales and use tax reimbursement 

payments described in Section 2(a) above for that year without affecting any 

other act or incentive agreed to by City. 

(f) To keep current in the payment of any and all taxes owed to any taxing 

jurisdiction in which the Property is located; and 

(g) To keep current in the payment of any and all charges and fees for utility 

services provided by the City to the Property. 



 4 

 

Section 4.  Recapture/Termination 

 

In the event that Developer begins operating a Burger King restaurant on the Property, 

but subsequently discontinues operating a restaurant on the Property for any reason, 

excepting fire, explosion, or other casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event 

beyond the reasonable control of Developer for a period of 180 days during the term of 

this Agreement, then in such event this Agreement shall terminate. The burden shall be 

upon Developer to prove to the satisfaction of the City that the discontinuance of the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property was as a result of fire, explosion, or other 

casualty or accident or natural disaster or other event beyond the control of Developer. In 

the event Developer meets this burden and the City is satisfied that the discontinuance of 

the operation of the restaurant on the Property was the result of events beyond the control 

of Developer, then Developer shall have a period of one (1) year in which to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property. In the event that Developer fails to resume the 

operation of the restaurant on the Property within one (1) year, then this Agreement shall 

terminate. The one (1) year time period, hereinabove mentioned, shall commence upon 

written notification from the City to Developer. 

 

In the event that Developer allows ad valorem taxes on real property or business personal 

property taxes owed to the City or utility service payments to become delinquent and fails 

to timely and properly follow the legal procedures for their protest or contest, then in 

such event, this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

In accordance with Chapter 2264, Texas Government Code, Developer certifies that 

Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer does not and will not 

knowingly employ an undocumented worker. Developer further certifies that in the event 

that Developer, or a branch, division, or department of Developer, is convicted of a 

violation under 8 U.S.C. Section 1324a(f), Developer shall repay the amounts previously 

paid to Developer by the City pursuant to this Agreement, with interest, at the rate and 

according to the other terms provided herein. Such a conviction shall be cause for this 

Agreement to terminate. 

 

In the event that the City determines that Developer is in default of any of the terms or 

conditions contained in this Agreement, then in such event, the City shall give Developer 

thirty (30) days written notice to cure such default. Except as provided in Section 3(e) 

herein, in the event such default is not cured to the satisfaction of the City within the 

thirty (30) days notice period, then this Agreement shall terminate.  

 

The date of termination as that term is used in this subsection shall, in every instance, be 

the thirtieth (30th) day after the day the City sends notice of default to the address shown 

in this Agreement to Developer. Should the default be cured by Developer within the 

thirty (30) day notice period, Developer shall be responsible for so advising the City and 

obtaining a release from the notice of default from the City, failing in which, the 

Agreement may be considered by the City to be terminated. 

 



 5 

In every case of termination set forth above: (1) the City shall determine in its sole 

discretion whether default has occurred by Developer in the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement, which determination shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; (2) 

Developer will forfeit any and all payments it has received under this Agreement; and, 

(3) Developer shall be responsible for repayment to the City of any payment provided to 

Developer under the terms of this Agreement during the period that this Agreement was 

in effect. Repayment shall be made to the City within sixty (60) days of the termination 

of this Agreement as provided herein. Amounts required to be repaid to the City pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be repaid with interest, bearing an interest rate of ten percent 

(10%) per annum, said interest accruing beginning on the date of the original sales and 

use tax reimbursement payment from the City to Developer. 

 

Section 5.  Certification of Compliance by Developer 

 

On or before July 1 of each year that this Agreement is in effect, Developer shall certify 

in writing to the City its compliance with all provisions of this Agreement. Such 

certification shall include any and all documentation establishing that Developer has met 

the annual employment requirement for the previous year and that all taxes related to the 

Property have been paid in full as required by law. The City, at any reasonable time, shall 

have the right to review any and all records of Developer related to the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

 

At all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement, the City, and its respective 

designees, may inspect the improvements and the Property in order to verify the 

construction, workmanship, materials, installations, and maintenance involved in or 

incident to, and operation of, the project are performed in substantial compliance with the 

applicable building permits, governmental regulations, and the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement. 

 

Section 6.  Term 

 

This Agreement shall remain in effect until the earlier of: 1) the date the City has made 

all reimbursement payments to the Developer as required by Section 2(a) of this 

Agreement; or 2) the expiration of five (5) years beginning on the first date of collection 

of any sales and use tax amount generated from the new Burger King restaurant, at which 

time this Agreement shall terminate, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with 

another provision of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  Entire Agreement 

 

 This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the City and Developer 

with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.  This Agreement may be amended, 

altered, or revoked only by written instrument signed by the City and Developer. 

 

 

 



 6 

Section 8.  Successors and Assigns 

 

 This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 

respective successors and assigns.  Developer may assign all or part of its rights and 

obligations hereunder only upon prior written approval of the City, which approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

Section 9.  Notices 

 

 Any notice and/or statement required and permitted to be delivered shall be 

deemed delivered by depositing same in the United States mail, certified with return 

receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the appropriate party at the following 

addresses or at such addresses provided by the parties in writing hereafter: 

 

 Developer:   Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC 

     1801 Shady Lane 

     Brenham, Texas 77833 

 

 City:    City Manager, City of Navasota 

     P.O. Box 910 

     Navasota, Texas 77868-0910 

 

Section 10.  Interpretation 

 

 Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall in the 

event of a dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and reasonably, 

and neither more strongly for or against either party. 

 

Section 11.  Applicable Law 

 

 This Agreement is made and shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of 

the State of Texas and exclusive venue for any cause of action, claim, dispute, or legal 

proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall lie in Grimes County, Texas. 

 

Section 12.  Attorney’s Fees 

 

 The parties hereto agree that the prevailing party in any dispute between the parties 

arising out of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its attorney’s fees. 

 

Section 13.  Severability 

 

 In the event that any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 

unenforceable under present or future laws, then, and in that event, it is the intention of 

the parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 

it is also the intention of the parties to this Agreement that in lieu of each clause or 

provision that is found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, a provision be added to 



 7 

this Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms as possible 

to the provision found to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable. 

 

Section 14.  Mutual Assistance 

 

 City and Developer agree to do all things reasonably necessary or appropriate to 

carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to reasonably aid and assist 

each other in carrying out such terms and provisions. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be 

effective on the____________. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA   ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Hon. Bert Miller, Mayor   Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary  

 

 

 

Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 

Jim Kolkhorst, President   Printed Name: 

      Title: 



 8 

 

Exhibit A 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 1R REPLAT (Burger King) 

 

JONES ADDITION, BLOCK 2, LOT 10, SHOPPING CENTER (Subway, Dry Cleaners, 

Kolkhorst) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

 

Exhibit B 

Pavers 

 
Street Lamps 

 



 10 

Planter Boxes 

 
Quantity Item Cost 

2 VP72x30x30 $895.00 

1 Freight $979.00 

TOTAL: $2,769.00 

 

Layout 

 

Total Material Costs: $17,700.21 

 

 



 11 

Exhibit C 

 

Description of restaurant amenities  

 

New quick-serve, single-story Burger King restaurant, 4,320 square feet in size, with 

drive-through service, and parking spaces as required by the applicable building code(s). 



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By:  Susie Homeyer, City Secretary  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits: Minutes, Expenditure and Ordinance 
No. 1000-22 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consent agenda items are: 
 

A. Consider approval on the minutes from the month of July 2022; 
 

B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of July 2022; and 
 

C. Consider approval on the second reading of Ordinance No. 1000-22, 
approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell 
for a 1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, and a 
second voluntary annexation request submitted by J & H Development, for 
a 1.567 acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes 
County, Texas. 

 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Consent Agenda items may be acted upon with one motion and vote.  No separate 
discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City 
Councilmember, in which event the time will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular 
agenda. 
 
Staff has placed the minutes and month of July 2022 expenditures on the consent 
agenda for approval. Additionally, Ordinance No. 1000-22 for a voluntary annexation 
of two (parcels) in the Pecan Lakes subdivision is being requested by Jim Hassell, 
which was approved unanimously on the first reading. 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: N/A 
 

Account Number: N/A 
 

Amount Budgeted: N/A 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



Approve the consent agenda items which include the minutes and expenditures 
for the month of July 2022 and the second reading of Ordinance No. 1000-22, 
approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C. Hassell for a 
1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, and a second 
voluntary annexation request submitted by J & H Development, for a 1.567 acre 
tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 
 
 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

  
 
    
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JULY 5, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

                          Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Jennifer Reyna, Director of Utilities and Lance Hall, Finance Director. 
 
VISITORS: Tim Wolff and Joshua Wolff. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Mayor Bert Miller dispensed the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. The City Council held a brief discussion on the bid award for the 2020 Capital 

Improvements Project Downtown for the water main replacement located on W. 

Washington and N. LaSalle.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved that, as 

authorized by Texas Government Code, Section 2269.055(a) (1), (2) and (3), 

after considering the bidders’ prices, the bidders’ experience and reputation, and 

the quality of the bidders’ goods or services, that the 2020 Capital 

Improvements Project Downtown for the water main replacement located at W. 

Washington and N. LaSalle be awarded to D & S Contracting, Inc. in the amount 

of $480,490.00, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each 

Councilmember present, the motion carried.  

 



9. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:21 p.m. 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

JULY 11, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

                           Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Lance Hall, Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Cary 
Bovey, Legal Counsel; Bobbie Ullrich, Marketing and Communications Director; 
Dominque Lowery, Facilities Manager; Peggy Johnson, HR Director; Matt Julian, 
Water/Wastewater Supervisor; Michael Lopez, Parks and Recreation Laborer and Sky 
Bradshaw, Mechanic Helper. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Mac Vaughn, Lauren Julian, Dee 
Ward, and others. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  Invocation was given by Mac Vaughn. The City Council, staff members and 
visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas 
Flag. 
 
3. Remarks of visitors: None. 
 

4. Staff report: 

 

a) The City Council and Human Resource Director Peggy Johnson recognized 
Matt Julian for fifteen years of service to the City of Navasota;  
 

b) Human Resource Director Peggy Johnson introduced Michael Lopez as the 
new Parks and Recreation Laborer and Sky Bradshaw as the new 
Mechanic’s Helper. 

 



c) There were not any Board and Commission updates; 
 

e)  Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 
 
5.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 998-22, 
regarding the requested annexation submitted by James C. Hassell for a 1.310 
acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, and a second voluntary 
annexation submitted by J & H  Development for a 1.567 acre tract of land in 
the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, setting a date 
and place for a public hearing on a proposed annexation of said property by the 
City of Navasota, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each 
Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
6.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 
No. 999-22, authorizing the suspension of the effective date for an additional 
ninety (90) days beyond the August 5, 2022 effective date proposed by Entergy, 
Texas, Inc. in connection with its rate increase application, seconded by 
Councilmember Pattie Pederson and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 
motion carried.  Citizen Connie Clements addressed the City Council concerning 
this item.  She is in favor of suspending the date for an additional 90 days. She 
is also opposed to Entergy charging customers for the use of electric cars.  She 
does not support this nor does she endorse it. 
 
7.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the minutes for the month 
of June 2022, with the corrections noted, the expenditures for the month of 
June 2022, and the second reading of Ordinance No. 997-22, approving a 
voluntary annexation request submitted by Miriah Caskey, Power of Attorney for 
Anthony Cuneen, for a 2.875 acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, 
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and 
with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 
 
8. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:31 p.m. 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JULY 20, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3  

                          Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Pat Gruner, Navasota Municipal Judge and Lupe Diosdado, Development Services 
Director. 
 
VISITORS: Thomas Gwosdz 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2.  The City Council held a workshop training session on the Robert Rules of  
     Order. 
 
3.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:37 p.m. 

_________________________ 

BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JULY 25, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 4:30 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3  

                          Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 
Development Director; Peggy Johnson, HR Director; Lance Hall, Finance Director; Mike 
Mize, Interim Police Chief; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; and Cary Bovey, Legal 
Counsel. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Jeff Witaker, Doris Sauls, R. J. Sauls and Mac Vaughn. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 
2.  The City Council held a workshop on impact fees.  Local governments are 
granted authority to adopt impact fees according to Chapter 395, Texas Local 
Government Code.  Impact fees is a charge or assessment imposed by a 
political subdivision against a new development in order to generate revenue for 
funding or recouping the costs of capital improvements or facility expansions 
necessitated by and attributable to new development. 
 
3.  The City Council held a workshop on a proposed new ordinance relating to 
aggressive dogs, public nuisance dogs and other provisions. 
 
3.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 5:42 p.m. 

 



                                                    ______________________________ 
                                                              BERT MILLER, MAYOR                                                              
 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 



MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING 

JULY 25, 2022 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City 
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 4:30 p.m., 
Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Pattie Pederson, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3  

                          Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Jason Weeks, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 
Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director; Rayna Willenbrink, Economic 
Development Director; Peggy Johnson, HR Director; Lance Hall, Finance Director; Mike 
Mize, Interim Police Chief; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; and Cary Bovey, Legal 
Counsel. 
 
VISITORS: Connie Clements, Jeff Witaker, Doris Sauls, R. J. Sauls and Mac Vaughn. 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 
2.  The City Council held a workshop on impact fees.  Local governments are 
granted authority to adopt impact fees according to Chapter 395, Texas Local 
Government Code.  Impact fees is a charge or assessment imposed by a 
political subdivision against a new development in order to generate revenue for 
funding or recouping the costs of capital improvements or facility expansions 
necessitated by and attributable to new development. 
 
3.  The City Council held a workshop on a proposed new ordinance relating to 
aggressive dogs, public nuisance dogs and other provisions. 
 
3.  Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 5:42 p.m. 

 



                                                    ______________________________ 
                                                              BERT MILLER, MAYOR                                                              
 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 

 













































































































 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1000-22 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 2.877 ACRES OF LAND, 
HEREINAFTER MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR ALL MUNICIPAL 
PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL NECESSARY AND 
REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; 
PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF 
THE CITY AND THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, 
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND 
ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality 

as defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, V.T.C.A., authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in 

accordance with the procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the 

property owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous 

to the present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and the 

public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas and the property owner 

negotiated and executed a Service Plan Agreement for the extension of municipal 

services into the area to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given 

and held as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the 

period of time as prescribed by law;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines 

and limits of the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the 

said area of land, which is described as follows: 

All that certain 1.567 Acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes 

County, Texas, and all that certain 1.310 Acre tract of land in the James 

Whitesides Survey, A-62, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A” 



 

 3 

attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of 

said citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, 

ordinances, codes, resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan Agreement which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit “B” is hereby incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all 

purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, 

Texas, heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to 

include the aforementioned areas as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to 

perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of 

the City of Navasota, Texas to add the territories hereby annexed as required by 

law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a 

certified copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform 

all other acts necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation 

of territories by this Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph 

or provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or 



 

 4 

if any portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of 

Navasota, Texas, for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect 

any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of 

this Ordinance or the application of any other section, subsection, sentence, 

phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The 

City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 

applications of this Ordinance and would have annexed the valid property 

without the invalid part, and as to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 

declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered 

and enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, and that notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was 

given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25TH DAY OF JULY, 2022. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

 
 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 8TH DAY OF 
AUGUST, 2022. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
        
 



           "EXHIBIT A"





Page 1 of 2 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
of a  

1.310 Acre Tract 
James Whitesides Survey, A‐62, Grimes County, Texas 

December 7, 2020 

All certain tract or parcel of land lying and being situated in Grimes County, Texas, out of the James 
Whitesides Survey, Abstract No. 62, being a part of Tract Two, called 27.49 acres, as described in a 
Warranty Deed with Vendor' Lien from Torres Salvage, Inc. to James C. Hassell, et ux, dated March 
16th, 2018, of record in Volume 1684, Page 451 of the Real Property Records of Grimes County, Texas, 
being a part of a called 1.2275 acre tract as described in a General Warranty Deed from Robert L. 
Waltrip to Meaux Hassell LLC, dated January 25, 2018, of record in Volume 1676, Page 324 of the Real 
Property Records of Grimes County, Texas and more fully described as follows: 

COMMENCING at a found 5/8 inch iron rod, in fence line, for a Northwest corner of Pecan Lakes 
Estates, Phase 3, Section 1, (Plat ‐ Doc. No. 309888), the Northwest corner of Sand Trap Lane (60 ft. 
ROW), the Northeast corner of a 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to be conveyed to Grimes County, 
in the generally fenced and North line of the called 1.2275 acre tract mentioned above and same being 
in the South line of a called 9.9 acre tract as described in a Deed to Charles Greenwood, Jr. (1061/421), 
from which a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at the base of a t‐post, for the Northwest corner of said 1.2275 
acre tract and the Northerly Northeast corner of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above brs.  
S 87°19'06" W, 105.47 ft.; 

THENCE S 02°44'20" E, 60.00 ft., along a portion of the West line of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1 and Sand Trap Lane to a found 5/8 inch iron rod for the Southwest corner thereof, the 
Southeast corner of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date, the Northeast corner and TRUE PLACE OF 
BEGINNING of the tract of land herein described; 

THENCE S 02°44'20" E, 352.39 ft., along a portion of the West line of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1 to a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at t‐post, for the Southeast corner of the called 1.2275 acre tract 
mentioned above, a Northeast corner of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above and same being 
the Southeast corner of the tract of land herein described; 

THENCE S 87°15'07" W, along the South line of the called 1.2275 acre tract mentioned above, a North 
line of the called 27.49 acre tract mentioned above and PASSING at 15.00 ft. a set 5/8 inch iron rod for 
the Easterly Northeast of a 10.00 acre tract surveyed this date, in the West line of a called 15 ft. 
drainage easement ("to be dedicated in the future") per the Final Plat of Pecan Lakes Estates, Phase 3, 
Section 1, continuing along said lines and PASSING at 105.62 ft. a found 1/2 inch iron rod, at t‐post, for 
the Southwest corner of said 1.2275 acre tract and an interior corner of said 27.49 acre tract and 
continuing for a TOTAL DISTANCE of 162.09 ft. to a set 5/8 inch iron rod for the Southwest corner of 
the tract of land herein described and same being an interior corner of said 10.00 acre tract surveyed 
this date; 

THENCE N 02°43'02" W, 351.60 ft., along an East line of said 10.00 acre tract surveyed this date to a set 
5/8 inch iron rod for the Northerly Northeast corner thereof, the Northwest corner of the tract of land 
herein described and same being in a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date; 

THENCE N 86°19'55" E, 56.96 ft., along a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to a set 
5/8 inch iron rod for a common angle point in line for corner; 

       "EXHIBIT A"



Page 2 of 2 

THENCE N 87°19'06" E, 105.01 ft., along a South line of said 0.607 acre tract surveyed this date to the 
TRUE PLACE OF BEGINNING and containing 1.310 acres of land. 

Basis of Bearings: Grid North, State Plane Coordinate System of 1983, Central Zone, Leica RTK Network. 

____________ 
Steven M. Wisnoski              12‐07‐2020 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6006 
Job #: 2014‐04‐03‐01 





                  Proposed Annexed Area 

                  Currenty City Limits Boundary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: August 8, 2022
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive
Session as permitted by Section 551.071, Texas Government
Code - Consultation with Attorney – Consultation with Legal
Counsel regarding legal issues concerning the contract with Green
Dream International, LLC for the Downtown Revitalization
Program – W. Washington Avenue - 8th Street to 10th Street, and
associated matters.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _______p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: August 8, 2022
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an
Executive Session in accordance with Section 551.072, Texas
Government Code, deliberation regarding real property and
discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-owned
property.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _____p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: August 8, 2022
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: JW
 

Reconvene in open session.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The time is _______p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #14 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Jason Weeks, City Manager  
Department: Administration  

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  
 
Exhibits: Change Order No. 1 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on the contract with Green Dream 
International, LLC for the Downtown Revitalization Program – W. Washington 
Avenue - 8th Street to 10th Street, including but not limited to approval of Change 
Order No. 1 to said contract and associated matters. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
As a result of miscommunication between the City of Navasota and Contractor 
concerning the project start date and certain associated matters, a dispute arose 
between the City and Contractor concerning the project start date and potential 
financial adjustments to the contract price due to the adjusted project start date. To 
resolve the dispute, the City’s legal counsel along with the City Manager and 
Contractor agreed to an adjusted project start date of August 15, 2022, and an 
increase in the contract price by $25,629.00, for a total revised contract price of 
$408,839.98. All other terms and conditions of the contract documents remain 
unaffected by this Change Order. This agreed Change Order shall not constitute an 
admission of liability by either the City of Navasota or Contractor regarding the 
specific matters addressed by this Change Order. 
 
Staff was prepared and had already taken the necessary steps to begin re-bidding 
this project. Based on the increase in cost of construction materials, staff believes that 
the project cost would have risen to close to $600,000 if re-bid. Therefore, staff 
recommends City Council approving Change Order No. 1 on the Washington Avenue 
streetscape project in the amount of $25,629. 
 
 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: 100 – General Fund  
 

Account Number: 100-560-910-00 
 

Amount Budgeted: $383,210 
 

Amount Requested: $25,629 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



Approval of Change Order No. 1 on the W. Washington Avenue – 8th Street to 
10th Street Revitalization Program in the amount of $25,629.00 to Green Dream 
International, LLC.   
 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022



 

EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 Change Order No. 1 

Date of Issuance:       Effective Date:       
Owner: City of Navasota Owner's Contract No.: NAV011 
Contractor: Green Dream International Contractor’s Project No.:       
Engineer: KSA Engineers Engineer's Project No.: NAV011 
Project: Downtown Revitalization Program, W. 

Washington Ave. 8th St. to 10th St. 
Contract Name: Downtown Revitalization Program 

W. Washington Ave. 8th St. to 10th 
St. 

The Contract is  modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order: 
Description: As a result of miscommunication between the Owner and Contractor concerning the 
project start date and certain associated matters, a dispute arose between the Owner and Contractor 
concerning the project start date and potential financial adjustments to the Contract Price due to the 
adjusted project start date. In order to resolve the dispute, the Owner and Contractor agree to an 
adjusted project start date of August 15, 2022, and an increase in the Contract Price by $25,629.00, 
for a total revised Contract Price of $408,839.98. All other terms and conditions of the Contract 
Documents remain unaffected by this Change Order. This agreed Change Order shall not constitute 
an admission of liability by either the Owner or Contractor regarding the specific matters addressed by 
this Change Order. 
 
Attachments:  None 
 

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES  
[note changes in Milestones if applicable] 

Original Contract Price:        Original Contract Times:  150 Calendar Days 
 Substantial Completion:   May 16, 2022  
$ 383,210.98  Ready for Final Payment:  June 16, 2022  

 days or dates 
[Increase] [Decrease]  from previously approved Change 
Orders No.             to No.           : 

[Increase] [Decrease] from previously approved Change 
Orders No.              to No.             : 

 Substantial Completion:         
$        Ready for Final Payment:   

      
  
 days 

Contract Price prior to this Change Order:        Contract Times prior to this Change Order:        
 Substantial Completion:  May 16, 2022  
$ 383,210.98  Ready for Final Payment:  June 16, 2022  

 days or dates 
[Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order:        [Increase] [Decrease] of this Change Order:  Increase 
 Substantial Completion:  January 12, 2023  
$ 25,629.00  Ready for Final Payment:  February 11, 2023  

  
 days or dates 

Contract Price incorporating this Change Order:        Contract Times with all approved Change Orders:        
 Substantial Completion:  January 12, 2023  



EJCDC® C-941, Change Order. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.  

Page 2 of 2 

$ 408,839.98 Ready for Final Payment:  February 11, 2023 
days or dates 

RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED: 
By: By: By: 

Engineer (if required) Owner (Authorized Signature) Contractor (Authorized Signature) 
Title: Project Manager Title Title
Date: Date Date

Approved by Funding Agency (if 
applicable) 
By: Date: 
Title:  

Varand Vartanian

President, Green Dream International

08/04/2022

or dates
PTEDEDEDEDEDEDDEDEDEDDEDDDDEDDDEDDDDDDDDDEDDEDEDEDDDEDEDEDEDDDDEDDDEEEEEE :::::::::::::::

thorooooooo izzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzzededededededddededddededededeeeedeeeeeeeeeeeeee SiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSiSSiSSSSSSSSSSSSSiSSSSSiSSiSiSSSSSiSiSSSSSSSiSiSSSSSSSiiiSiSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS gngngngngnggngngngngngngngngggngngggggnggggngggnggggggnggngngngnggngggggnggnnnggngggggnggggnnnngggngnngnngngnnggnngggggng atatatatatatatatatatatattaatatattatatatatattaaatattatatatatataatatatttattaaatttatatatataaaatatattataaaaaaaaaaaa uurururrurruuururururururururururrrururrrrurrrurrrruruuuuuuuuuuurururuuuuuru e)eeeeee
aninnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn an

Dream International



 
REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM #15 

 

Agenda Date Requested:  August 8, 2022  
Requested By: Rayna Teicheira, Director  
Department: Economic Development   

 Report  Resolution  Ordinance  
  

 
Exhibits: None 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
Consideration and possible action on bid award for RFP Number 202201 – 
Redevelopment of Former City Warehouse. 
 
 

SUMMARY & RECOMMENDATION 
 
Since February 2021, City of Navasota staff has worked with City Council and legal 
counsel regarding the redevelopment of the Public Works Warehouse located at 200 
South Railroad Street and adjacent lot at 215 S Railroad Street. 
 
On April 11, 2022, City Council awarded a sealed bid for the construction of a new 
Public Works Warehouse at the Wastewater Treatment Plant property at 108 S Peeples 
Street. The estimated total construction cost of the new Public Works warehouse is 
$481,933. Then on April 27, 2022, the City released the Request for Proposal (RFP) 
document for the lease or purchase of city property for the redevelopment of the City 
Warehouse.  
 
The RFP was published on the City of Navasota’s website and an advertisement was 
published in the Navasota Examiner on the May 11, 2022, May 25, 2022, and June 22 
editions. The property was also advertised in the June edition of Shopping Center 
Business Magazine and advertised on the City of Navasota’s social media accounts on 
June 8, 2022, July 14, 2022, and July 26, 2022. The due date to submit proposals was 
July 27, 2022, no later than 3 PM. 
 
The City received two sealed (2) proposals. Both bids were for the purchase of the 
building and adjacent lot. City staff met on July 27, 2022, at 3:01 PM and again on 
August 3 to review the proposals. 
 
In preparing the FY 2022-23 Proposed Budget, staff has budgeted $300,000 for the 
sale of the City Warehouse. The proceeds of the sale of the warehouse will be 

Appropriation 

Source of Funds: Utility Funds 
 

Account Number: XXX-4-913.00 
 

Amount Budgeted: $300,000 
 

Amount Requested: N/A 
 

Budgeted Item:  Yes  No  
   



deposited 1/3 in the Water Fund, 1/3 in the Natural Gas Fund, and 1/3 in the 
Wastewater Fund. The proceeds will off-set the cost of construction for the new Public 
Works warehouse which cost have been spread likewise over the same funds.  
 
City staff recommends awarding a bid for RFP Number 202201 – Redevelopment of 
Former City Warehouse and begin contract negotiations. 
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED BY CITY COUNCIL 
Award bid for RFP Number 202201 – Redevelopment of Former City Warehouse. 

 

Approved for the City Council meeting agenda 

 
 
     
Jason B. Weeks, City Manager  Date 
 

8/5/2022


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Credentialed Manager designation from ICMA [Bert Miller, Mayor];
(b) Budget Update [Jason Weeks, City Manager];
(c) Board and Commission update [City Council]; and
(d) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 Planning Calendar
	 Vision-Mission-Strategic Plan - 2022

	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on annual activity report from Grimes Health Resource Center for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and budget request for FY 2021-2022. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 2022 Budget Letter
	 GHRC 3rd quarter report
	 FY 2020-2021

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on proposal to adopt tax rate for 2022 and announce time, date, and place of public hearings and the meetings to vote on the tax rate. [Lance Hall, Finance Director]
	 2022 TNT
	 Budget Calendar

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on appointment to library advisory board. [Tiffany Byers, Library Director]
	 Applications

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Consideration and possible action on entering into a Master Service Interlocal Agreement with Brazos Valley Council of Governments (BVCOG) for fiber internet services. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 BVCOG-ILA

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on approval of a Chapter 380 agreement with RAM NAVASOTA, LLC regarding the development of a Jack in the Box Restaurant, widening of County Road 425 and other commercial improvements to the property located near the corner of County Road 425 (also known as Durden Street) and State Highway 105 East, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. [Lupe Diosdado, Development Services Director]
	 380 Development Agreement

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda. [City Council]
Consent Items are:
A. Consider approval on the minutes for the month of July 2022;
B. Consider approval on the expenditures for the month of July 2022; and
C. Consider approval of the second reading of Ordinance No. 1000-22, approving a voluntary annexation request submitted by James C Hassell for a 1.310-acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62, and a second voluntary annexation request submitted by J&H Development, for a 1.567-acre tract of land in the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. [Mayor Bert Miller]
	 Minutes - 07/05/2022
	 Minutes - 07/11/2022
	 July 20, 2022 - Special Meeting
	 Minutes - 07/25/2022 - Special Meeting
	 Minutes - 07/25/2022
	 Expenditures for July 2022
	 Ordinance No. 1000-22

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Executive Session: The City Council shall meet in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.071, Texas Government Code - Consultation with Attorney - Consultation with Legal Counsel regarding legal issues concerning the contract with Green Dream International, LLC for the Downtown Revitalization Program - W. Washington Avenue - 8th Street to 10th Street, and associated matters.
	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Executive Session:  The City Council will conduct an Executive Session in accordance with Section 551.072, Texas Government Code, deliberation regarding real property and discussion regarding the potential sale and/or value of City-owned property.
	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Reconvene in open session.
	Agenda Item No. 14 -  Consideration and possible action on the contract with Green Dream International, LLC for the Downtown Revitalization Program - W. Washington Avenue - 8th Street to 10th Street, including but not limited to approval of Change Order No. 1 to said contract, and associated matters. [Jason Weeks, City Manager]
	 Change Order No. 1

	Agenda Item No. 15 -  Consideration and possible action on bid award for RFP Number 202201 - Redevelopment of Former City Warehouse. [Rayna Teicheira, Economic Development Director]



